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CNO 
CARO.23 

Cl 10 - Case of Debenture holder Money (N18E/N20R) 

 
The company has raised funds by issuing fully convertible debentures. These funds were raised for the 
expansion and diversification of the business. However, the company utilized these funds for repayment 
of long-term loans and advances.” Advise the auditor regarding reporting requirements under CARO, 2020. 

Answer 
 
 

 The auditor is required to report as per clause x(b) of paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 whether the 
company has made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and if so, whether the 
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and 
the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, if not, provide 
details in respect of amount involved and nature of non-compliance; 

 In view of the above clause, the auditor would report that funds raised by the company for expansion 
and diversification of business have not been used for the said purpose rather the company has 
utilised these funds for repayment of long term loans and advance.  

 

CNO 
CARO.25 

 CARO (Cl 10 - Requirements)                                                                                              (M18E/M19M) 

 
State the matters to be included in the auditor's report as per CARO, 2020, regarding: 
(i) Private Placement of Preferential Issues. 
(ii) Utilisation of IPO and further public offer. 

Answer 
 
 

 Private Placement of Preferential Issues. 
Whether the company has made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and if so, whether 
the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with 
and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, if not, provide 
details in respect of amount involved and nature of non-compliance; 
  

 Utilisation of IPO and further public offer. 
whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year were applied for the purposes for which those are raised, if not, the 
details together with delays or default and subsequent rectification, if any, as may be applicable, be 
reported; 

 

CNO 
CARO.27 

Cl 11-  Scope of auditor’s Responsibility w.r.t 
fraud- Master Answer 

(M18R/N19R/N20E/S20M) 

 The scope of auditor’s inquiry under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 is restricted to frauds ‘noticed or reported’ during the year. Explain. 

Answer 
 
 

 Clause 11 of CARO 
Whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the year, if yes, the nature and the amount involved is to be indicated; 
 

 Scope of Inquiry Restricted to Frauds Noticed or Reported, Not Required to Detect All Frauds 
The scope of auditor’s inquiry under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’ s Report) 
Order, 2020 is restricted to frauds ‘noticed or reported’ during the year.  
 

 Discussion with other members of audit team 
While planning the audit, the auditor should discuss with other members of the audit team, the 
susceptibility of the company to material misstatements in the financial statements resulting from 
fraud. While planning, the auditor should also make inquiries of management to determine whether 
management is aware of any known fraud or suspected fraud that the company is investigating. 
 

 Report of Internal Auditor 
The auditor should examine the reports of the internal auditor with a view to ascertain whether 
any fraud has been reported or noticed by the management. The auditor should examine the 
minutes of the audit committee, if available, to ascertain whether any instance of fraud pertaining 
to the company has been reported and actions taken thereon. 

 

 Inquire from Management 
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The auditor should enquire from the management about any frauds on the company that it has 
noticed or that have been reported to it. The auditor should also discuss the matter with other 
employees including officers of the company. The auditor should also examine the minute book of 
the board meeting of the company in this regard. 
 

 Consider fraud under Sec 143(12) 
The auditor should consider if any fraud has been reported by them during the year under section 
143(12) of the Act and if so whether that same would be reported under this Clause. It may be 
mentioned here that section 143(12) of the Act requires the auditor has reasons to believe that a 
fraud is being committed or has been committed by an employee or officer. In such a case the 
auditor needs to report to the Central Government or the Audit Committee. However, this Clause 
will include only the reported frauds and not suspected fraud. 
 

 Obtain Written Representation 
The auditor should obtain written representations from management that: 

(i). it acknowledges its responsibility for the implementation and operation of accounting and 
internal control systems that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error; 

(ii). it believes the effects of those uncorrected misstatements in financial statements, 
aggregated by the auditor during the audit are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
A summary of such items should be included in or attached to the written representation; 
 

(iii). it has:- 
(a). disclosed to the auditor all significant facts relating to any frauds or suspected 

frauds known to management that may have affected the entity; and  
(b). disclosed to the auditor the results of its assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 

 Written representation is not a substitute  
Because management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material 
misstatements, it is important that the auditor obtains written representation from management 
that any uncorrected misstatements resulting from fraud are, in management's opinion, 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate. Such representations are not a substitute for 
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence. In some circumstances, management may not 
believe that certain of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements aggregated by the 
auditor during the audit are misstatements. For that reason, management may want to add to their 
written representation words such as, "We do not agree that items constitute misstatements 
because [description of reasons]." 
 

 Reporting under Clause 11 
Where the auditor notices that any fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or 
reported during the year, the auditor, apart from reporting the existence of fraud, is also required 
to report, the nature of fraud and amount involved. For reporting under this clause, the auditor may 
consider the following: 

(i). This clause requires that all frauds noticed or reported during the year shall be reported 
indicating the nature and amount involved. 

(ii). While reporting under this clause with regard to the nature and the amount involved of the 
frauds noticed or reported, the auditor may also consider the principles of materiality 
outlined in Standards on Auditing. 
 

 Even if fraud is reported in CARO, Reporting will be required in Regular Audit Report  
It may be noted that reporting under this clause does not relieve the auditor from his responsibility 
to consider fraud and error in an audit of financial statements. In other words, irrespective of the 
auditor’s comments under this clause, the auditor is also required to comply with the requirements 
of SA 240, “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”. 

 Author’s Note 
 

Please see following flow and summary 
Question is regarding scope of auditor with respect to Clause 11 of CARO 
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So basically what is auditor supposed to do regarding Clause11 
 

Clause 11 of CARO 
Audit procedure so as to get information for clause 11 ( New Heading) 

2a. Inquiry from management 
2b Read report of internal auditor 
2c. Discussion with members of audit team 
2d. Obtain written representation 
2e. Written representation not a substitute  

 

Important Points 
3a. Scope of Inquiry Restricted to Frauds Noticed or Reported (We cannot take responsibility of all 
frauds) 
3b. Under 143(12) suspected frauds are also reported but in CARO Cl 11 only noticed or reported actual 
frauds are reported 
3c. Even if fraud reporting is done in caro, reporting may be required in audit report also if financial 
statements are misstated 

 

CNO 
CARO.29 

Cl 11- Auditor’s Responsibility w.r.t fraud- fake invoices 
of credit purchases by head accountant- Brief 

(M20R) 

 "The head accountant of a company entered fake invoices of credit purchases in the books of account 
aggregate of Rs 50 lakh and cleared all the payments to such bogus creditor. How will you deal as an auditor?" 

Answer 
 

 

 Report the fraudulent activity to the Board or Audit Committee {Sec 143(12)} 
Here, the auditor of the company is required to report the fraudulent activity to the Board or Audit 
Committee (as the case may be) within 2 days of his knowledge of fraud.  
 

 Disclosure in Board Report 
Further, the company is also required to disclose the same in Board’s Report.  
 

 Reporting to the central government- Not Required 
It may be noted that the auditor need not to report the central government as the amount of fraud 
involved is less than Rs 1 crore, however, reporting under Clause (xi), CARO, 2020 is required. 

 Author’s Note  
In this question ICAI has given reference to CARO “clause ix”. Students can mention the whole clause. 

 

TRUE OR FALSE 
CNO-CARO-T-1 
 CARO, 2020, is intended to limit the duties and responsibilities of auditors. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
CARO,2020 is not intended to limit the duties and responsibilities of auditors but only requires a statement to 
be included in the audit report in respect of the matters specified therein. 

 
CNO-CARO-T-2 

 
Provision of CARO, 2020 is not applicable to ABC Pvt. Ltd., a subsidiary of XYZ Ltd. (a public company) having 
fully paid Capital and Reserves & Surplus off 50 lakhs, Secured loan from bank of f 90 Lakhs and Turnover 
of, 5 Crore, for the financial year 2018-19. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Provision of CARO, 2020 is not applicable to only those private limited company, which are not a subsidiary or 
holding company of a public company. Here it is applicable. 

 

http://www.auditguru.in


 

www.auditguru.in                                                             10.69 

  
 
 
QNO 
299.01 

Joint Audit-Advantages- Disadvantages Old Course-- (P16M/N19R) 
  New Course(N19R/S20M/S21M) 

 

The practice of appointing Chartered Accountants as joint auditors is quite widespread in big companies 
and corporations. Explain stating the advantages of the joint audit. 

OR 
Explain the concept of joint audit. Discuss its advantage and disadvantage 

Answer 
 
 

 Joint Audit:  
The practices of appointing chartered accountants as joint auditors is quite widespread in big 
companies and corporations, joint audit basically implies pooling together the resources and 
expertise of more than one firm of auditors to render an expert job in a given time period which 
may be difficult to accomplish acting individually. It essentially involves sharing of the total work. 

 

When more than one auditor is appointed to audit large entities, such auditors are called joint 
auditors. Joint auditors have a collective responsibility to report on the financial statements. 

 

SA 299, “Joint Audit” deals with duties, rights and professional responsibilities of joint auditors. 
The joint auditors should follow the principles of division of work and coordination while conducting 
joint audits. 

 

 “Advantages” of Joint Audit 
 Pooling and sharing of expertise. 
 Lower workload. 
 Advantage of mutual consultation. 
 Better quality of work performance. 
 Improved service to the client. 
 Lower staff development costs. 
 Lower costs to carry out the work. 
 A sense of healthy competition towards a better performance. 

 

Special Point 
 Displacement of the auditor of the company in a take-over often obviated. 
 In respect of multinational companies, the work can be spread using the expertise if the 

local firms which are in a better position to deal with detailed work and the local laws and 
regulations. 
 

 Disadvantages” of Joint Audit 
 Psychological problem where firms of different standing are associated in the joint audit. 
 General superiority complexes of some auditors. 
 Lack of clear definition of responsibility. 
 Problems of coordination of the work. 
 Areas of work of common concern being neglected. 
 The fees being shared. 
 Uncertainty about the liability for the work done. 

 
QNO 
299.03 

Developing the joint audit plan Old Course-- (M20R) 
        New Course(N19E/S20M/S21M/M20R) 

 "Before the commencement of audit, the joint auditors should discuss and develop a joint audit plan." 
Discuss the points to be considered in developing the joint audit plan by the joint auditors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Prior to the commencement of the audit, the joint auditors shall discuss and develop a joint audit 
plan. In developing the joint audit plan, the joint auditors shall: 

 Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where applicable, whether 
knowledge gained on other or similar engagements performed earlier by the respective 
engagement partner(s) for the entity is relevant. 

 Identify division of audit areas and common audit areas amongst the joint auditors that 
define the scope of the work of each joint auditor; 

Part 5 -- [SA 299] RESPONSIBILITY OF JOINT AUDITORS 
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 Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to perform the 
engagement. 

 Consider and communicate among all joint auditors the factors that, in their professional 
judgment, are significant in directing the engagement team’s efforts; 

 Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing of the audit and 
the nature of the communications required; 

 
QNO 
299.05 

Responsibility- Co-ordination between Joint 
Auditors- Master Answer 

Old Course-- (P16M/N17E) 
New Course—(S17M/S20M/S21M) 

 

A Joint Auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding matters to be 
covered in the report. Justify this statement in the light of responsibilities of Joint Auditors under SA 299. 

OR 
Short Notes on Joint Audit 

OR 
In Joint Audit, Each Joint Auditor is responsible only for the work allocated to him. 

OR 
Write a short note on responsibilities of Joint auditors. 

Answer 
 
 

 Main features of the said SA are discussed below 
 

 Specific Responsibilities 
 In respect of audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor shall 

be responsible only for the work allocated to such joint auditor including proper 
execution of the audit procedures. 

 It shall be the responsibility of each joint auditor to determine the nature, timing 
and extent of audit procedures to be applied in relation to the areas of work 
allocated to said joint auditor. It is the individual responsibility of each joint auditor 
to study and evaluate the prevailing system of internal control and assessment of 
risk relating to the areas of work allocated to said joint auditor 

 

 Joint Responsibilities 
All the joint auditors shall be jointly and severally responsible for: 
The audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is carried out by all joint 
auditors; 

 Decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning in respect of 
common audit areas concerning the nature, timing and extent of the audit 
procedures to be performed by each of the joint auditors. 

 Matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of them 
and on which there is an agreement among the joint auditors; 

 examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with the 
requirements of the relevant statutes; 

 Presentation and disclosure of the financial statements as required by the 
applicable financial reporting framework; 
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 Ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant 
statutes, the applicable Standards on Auditing and the other relevant 
pronouncements issued by ICAI. 

 Coordination 
Where, in the course of the audit, a joint auditor comes across matters which are relevant 
to the areas of responsibility of other joint auditors and which deserve their attention, or 
which require disclosure or require discussion with, or application of judgment by other 
joint auditors, the said joint auditor shall communicate the same to all the other joint 
auditors in writing prior to the completion of the audit. 
 
 

 Reporting 
The joint auditors are required to issue common audit report, however, where the joint 
auditors are in disagreement with regard to the opinion or any matters to be covered by 
the audit report, they shall express their opinion in a separate audit report.  

 

A joint auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding the 
opinion or matters to be covered in the audit report and shall express opinion formed by 
the said joint auditor in separate audit report in case of disagreement. In such 
circumstances, the audit report(s) issued by the joint auditor(s) shall make a reference to 
the separate audit report(s) issued by the other joint auditor(s). Further, separate audit 
report shall also make reference to the audit report issued by other joint auditors. 

 

Such reference shall be made under the heading “Other Matter Paragraph” as per Revised 
SA 706, “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent 
Auditor’s Report”.  

Shortcut- ADDA 
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Before finalizing their audit report, the joint auditors shall discuss and communicate with 
each other their respective conclusions that would form the content of the audit report. 

 
 Author’s Note  

This is a master answer for Joint Auditor covering  responsibility, coordination and reporting .Students are 
required to write the appropriate part as per the requirements of the question 

 

QNO 
299.07 

Responsibilities of Joint Auditor- Concealment- 
Professional Negligence #Unique 

Old Course-- (P16M) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New 

Course SM 

 
E and S were appointed as Joint Auditors of X and Y Ltd. What will be their professional responsibility in a 
case where the company has cleverly concealed certain transactions that escaped the notice of both the 
Auditors? 

Answer 
 
 

 Responsibilities of Joint Auditors:  
 In conducting a joint audit, the auditor(s) should bear in mind the possibility of existence of 

any fraud or error or any other irregularities in the accounts under audit. The principles laid 
down in SA 200, SA 240 and SA 299 need to be read together for arriving at any conclusion. 

 The principle of joint audit involves that each auditor is entitled to assume that other joint 
auditor has carried out his part of work properly.  

 However, in this case, if it can be assumed that the joint auditors E and S have exercised 
reasonable care and skill in auditing the accounts of X & Y Ltd. and yet the concealment of 
transaction has taken place, both joint auditors cannot be held responsible for professional 
negligence.  

 However, if such concealment could have been discovered by the exercise of reasonable 
care and skill, the auditors would be responsible for professional negligence. Therefore, it 
has to be seen that while dividing the work, the joint auditors have not left any area 
unattended and exercised reasonable care and skill while doing their work. 
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TRUE AND FALSE 
 

TNO- SA 299-1 

 If there is difference of opinion among the joint auditors with regard to any matter, majority joint auditors’ 
opinion will prevail while reporting. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
As per SA 299 “Responsibility of Joint Auditors”, where the joint auditors are in disagreement with regard to 
any matter to be covered by the audit report, each one of them should express his own opinion through a 
separate report. 

 
TNO- SA 299-2 

 A joint auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding matters to be 
covered in the auditor’s report. 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
As per SA 299 “Responsibility of Joint Auditors”, if a joint auditor is not bound by the views of majority of joint 
auditors regarding matters to be covered in the report and should express his opinion in a separate report in 
case of a disagreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.auditguru.in


 

www.auditguru.in                                                               11.1 

 
 
 
QNO 
700.03 

 Objectives & Framing Opinion                                                                                      New Course-- (S17M/N18M/ S20M) 

 

In order to form the audit opinion as required by SA 700, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the 
auditor has obtained reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Explain the conclusions that the auditor shall take 
into account. Also explain the objective of auditor as per SA 700. 

OR 
The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, 
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Explain. 

Answer 
 
 

 Objectives 
The objectives of the auditor as per SA 700 (Revised), “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial 
Statements” are: 

 To form an opinion on the financial statements based on an evaluation of the conclusions 
drawn from the audit evidence obtained; and 

 To express clearly that opinion through a written report. 
 

 Forming Opinion 
 The auditor shall form an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all 

material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 
 To form opinion - Auditor to obtain Reasonable assurance 
 In order to form that opinion, the auditor shall conclude as to whether the auditor has 

obtained reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 That conclusion shall take into account: 
 whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained; 
 whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individually or in aggregate; 
 The evaluations should include Qualitative Aspect 

 
QNO 
700.05 

True & Fair view #Unique              
                                                            

Old Course--( P16M /M16E/N16R/N17R/N20M) 
New Course—(M18E) 

 

What constitutes a 'true and fair' view, is the matter of an auditor's judgement in the particular 
circumstances of a case. In order to ensure 'true and fair' view, auditor has to review certain points. Mention 
any such 5 (five) points in brief. 

OR 
The concept of True and Fair is a fundamental concept in auditing. Discuss. 

OR 
Discuss the concept of True and Fair. 

OR 
What constitutes true and fair view is a matter of auditor’s judgement, but some specific points must be 
seen by the auditor to ensure true and fair view. 

OR 
The auditor R of GR and Co., a firm of Chartered Accountants is conducting audit of B Industries Ltd. State 
the specific points must be seen by the auditor to ensure true and fair view. 

Answer 
 
 

 Concept of “True and Fair”:  
The concept of “true and fair” is a fundamental concept in auditing. The phrase “true and fair” in the 
auditor’s report signifies that the auditor is required to express his opinion as to whether the state 
of affairs and the results of the entity as ascertained by him in the course of his audit are truly and 
fairly represented in the accounts under audit. 
 

 To ensure true and fair view, an auditor has to see: 
 that the assets are neither undervalued or overvalued, according to the applicable accounting 

principles, 
 no material asset is omitted; 

Part 1 -- [SA 700 Revised] FORMING AN OPINION AND REPORTING ON FINANCIAL 
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 the charge, if any, on assets are disclosed; 
 material liabilities should not be omitted; 
 the profit and loss account and balance sheet discloses all the matters required to be disclosed; 
 accounting policies have been followed consistently; and 
 all unusual, exceptional or non-recurring items have been disclosed separately. 

 
QNO 
700.07 

Unqualified Opinion                                                                                             Old Course--(P16M/M18E/M19M/M20M/M21R) 
New Course—(M19M/M20M/M21R) 

 

The Auditor is fully satisfied with the audit of an entity in respect of its systems and procedures and wants 
to issue a report without any hesitation. What type of opinion can be given and give reasoning. 

OR 
When does an auditor issue unqualified opinion and what does it indicate? 

Answer 
 
 

 

 An unqualified opinion should be expressed when the auditor concludes that the financial 
statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework used for 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements. 

 An unqualified opinion indicates, implicitly, that any changes in the accounting principles or in the 
method of their application, and the effects thereof, have been properly determined and disclosed 
in the financial statements. 

 An unqualified opinion also indicates that: 
 The financial statements have been prepared using the generally accepted accounting 

principles, which have been consistently applied; 
 the financial statements comply with relevant statutory requirements and regulations; and 
 there is adequate disclosure of all material matters relevant to the proper presentation of the 

financial information, subject to statutory requirements, where applicable. 
 
QNO 
700.09 

AR-Basic Elements Old Course -- (P16M) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 State the basic elements of the Auditor’s Report. 
Answer 
 
 

 Basic Elements of the Auditor’s Report:  
As per SA 700 “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements”, the auditor’s report 
includes the following basic elements, ordinarily, in the following layout- 

 Title; 
 Addressee; 
 Auditor’s Opinion 
 Basis of Opinion 
 Going Concern (If Required) 
 Key Audit Matter (If applicable) 
 Responsibility of Management for the FST 
 Auditor’s Responsibility 
 Other Reporting Responsibility 
 Signature  
 Place 
 Date 

 
QNO 
700.09.50 

Introductory Paragraph of Audit Report New Course – (M21E) 

 While drafting report of LK Ltd, what are the matter to be included by auditor in introductory paragraph? 

Answer The first section of the auditor’s report shall include the auditor’s opinion and shall have the heading 
“Opinion.” 
 
The Opinion section of the auditor’s report shall also: 
(a) State that the financial statements have been audited; 
(b) Identify the entity whose financial statements have been audited; 
(c) Identify the title of each statement comprising the financial statements; 
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(d) Refer to the notes, including the summary of significant accounting policies; and 
(e) Specify the date of, or period covered by, each financial statement comprising the financial 
statements. 

 
QNO 
700.10 

Opinion section of the auditor’s report Old Course--(M20R) 
New Course—(S20M/M20R) 

 

The first section of the auditor’s report shall include the auditor’s opinion, and shall have the heading 
“Opinion.” The Opinion section of the auditor’s report shall also Identify the entity whose financial 
statements have been audited. Apart from the above, explain the other relevant points to be included in 
opinion section. 

Answer 
 

 The first section of the auditor’s report shall include the auditor’s opinion, and shall have the heading 
“Opinion. 

 The Opinion section of the auditor’s report shall also: 
 Identify the entity whose financial statements have been audited; 
 State that the financial statements have been audited; 
 Identify the title of each statement comprising the financial statements; 
 Refer to the notes, including the summary of significant accounting policies; and 
 Specify the date of, or period covered by, each financial statement comprising the financial 

statements. 
 
QNO 
700.11 

Basis for Opinion Para Old Course-- (N19R/N20R) 
New Course—(N19R/S20M/N20R/N19R) 

 The auditor’s report shall include a section, directly following the Opinion section, with the heading “Basis 
for Opinion”. Explain what is included in this “Basis for Opinion” section. 

Answer 
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QNO 
700.13 

Management Responsibility Paragraph                                                                                          Old Course--(M17E/M19M/M20M/M21M) 
New Course—(M19M/M20M/M21M) 

 

The auditor’s report shall include a section with a heading “Responsibilities of Management for the Financial 
Statements.” SA 200 explains the premise, relating to the responsibilities of management and, where 
appropriate, those charged with governance, on which an audit in accordance with SAs is conducted. Explain 

OR 
State in brief, the management’s responsibilities relating to the audit of financial statements. 

Answer 
 
 

 

 Responsibilities for the Financial Statements: 
 The auditor’s report shall include a section with a heading “Responsibilities of Management for the 
Financial Statements.” SA 200 explains the premise, relating to the responsibilities of management 
and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, on which an audit in accordance with SAs 
is conducted. Management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance accept 
responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements. Management also accepts 
responsibility for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The 
description of management’s responsibilities in the auditor’s report includes reference to both 
responsibilities as it helps to explain to users the premise on which an audit is conducted. 

 

 This section of the auditor’s report shall describe management’s responsibility for: 
 Preparing the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error;[because of the possible effects of fraud on other aspects of the audit, 
materiality does not apply to management’s acknowledgement regarding its responsibility 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control (or for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting) to prevent and detect fraud.] 
and 

 Assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the 
going concern basis of accounting is appropriate as well as disclosing, if applicable, matters 
relating to going concern. The explanation of management’s responsibility for this 
assessment shall include a description of when the use of the going concern basis of 
accounting is appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Heading à Depending on circumstances ( law applicable , nature of entity etc) heading can 
refer to management or also TCWG as the case may be.

1. Description of Responsibility for FST (BASIC)
If compliance framework à  Preparation of FST as per applicable FRF

If fair presentation framework à Preparation & Fair Presentation of FST

(2 MORE TO SUPPORT ABOVE)

2. Also responsibility to  create & maintain internal control system to support above.

3. Responsibility to Assess whether going concern assessment is appropriate, disclosure of 
issues regarding going concern and statement on appropriateness of going concern

(LAST TO COVER ALL ABOVE)
4. Identify people who are responsible for oversight of financial reporting process. If TCWG 

is responsible include their name in heading.
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QNO 
700.14 

SA 700 aims to make audit report consistent & 
comparable #Unique 

Old Course-- (M21R) 
New Course—(M21R) 

 The requirements of SA 700 are aimed at addressing an appropriate balance between the need for 
consistency and comparability in auditor reporting globally. Explain 

Answer The requirements of SA 700 are aimed at addressing an appropriate balance between the need for 
consistency and comparability in auditor reporting globally and the need to increase the value of 
auditor reporting by making the information provided in the auditor’s report more relevant to users. 
This SA promotes consistency in the auditor’s report but recognizes the need for flexibility to 
accommodate particular circumstances of individual jurisdictions. Consistency in the auditor’s 
report, when the audit has been conducted in accordance with SAs, promotes credibility in the 
global marketplace by making more readily identifiable those audits that have been conducted in 
accordance with globally recognized standards. It also helps to promote the user’s understanding 
and to identify unusual circumstances when they occur. 

 
QNO 
700.15 

Certificate Vs Audit Report Old Course -- (P16M) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Partially Covered in New Course SM 

 How would you as an auditor distinguish between Reports and Certificates? 
Answer 
 
 

A certificate is a written confirmation of the accuracy of the facts stated therein and does not involve any 
estimate or opinion. The term ‘certificate’ is, therefore, used where the auditor verifies the accuracy of facts. 
An auditor may thus, certify the circulation figures of a newspaper or the value of imports or exports of a 
company. An auditor’s certificate represents that he has verified certain figures and is in a position to vouch 
safe their accuracy as per his examination of documents and books of account.  
 

A report, on the other hand, is a formal statement usually made after an enquiry, examination or reviews of 
specified matters under report and includes the reporting auditor’s opinion thereon. Thus, when a reporting 
auditor issues a certificate, he is responsible for the factual accuracy of what is stated therein.  
 

On the other hand, when a reporting auditor gives a report, he is responsible for ensuring that the report is 
based on factual data, that his opinion is in due accordance with facts, and that it is arrived at by the application 
of due care and skill. The ‘report’ involves expression of opinion which may differ from one professional to 
another.  
 

There is no question of exactitude in case of a report since the information contained therein is based on 
estimates and involves judgement element. 

 
QNO 
700.17 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices                                                                                  Old Course—(M20R)     
New Course--(M18M/N18M/M19M/M20R/ S20M)                                                   

 

The auditor evaluated, in respect of T Ltd., whether the financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. 
Auditor’s evaluation included consideration of the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, 
including indicators of possible bias in management’s judgments. 
Advise the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices. 

OR 
In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware 
of possible bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with 
uncorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated. Explain and analyse 
the indicators of lack of neutrality with examples, wherever required. 
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Answer 
 
 

The auditor shall evaluate whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. This evaluation shall 
include consideration of the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, including indicators of 
possible bias in management’s judgments. 
 

Management makes a number of judgments about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
 

 Qualitative Aspects explained in SA 260 and it includes Management Bias 
SA 260 (Revised) contains a discussion of the qualitative aspects of accounting practices in considering the 
qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware of possible bias in 
management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that the cumulative effect of a lack of neutrality, 
together with the effect of uncorrected misstatements, causes the financial statements as a whole to be 
materially misstated.  
 

 Indicators of Lack of Neutrality 
Indicators of a lack of neutrality that may affect the auditor’s evaluation of whether the financial 
statements as a whole are materially misstated include the following: 

 The selective correction of misstatements brought to management’s attention during the audit.
(E.g., correcting misstatements with the effect of increasing reported earnings, but not)  

 correcting misstatements that have the effect of decreasing reported earnings). 
 Possible management bias in the making of accounting estimates. 

 

 SA 540 explains Management Bias 
SA 540 addresses possible management bias in making accounting estimates. Indicators of possible 
management bias do not constitute misstatements for purposes of drawing conclusions on the 
reasonableness of individual accounting estimates. They may, however, affect the auditor’s evaluation of 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. 

 
QNO 
700.19    Specific Evaluations                                                                                              Old Course—(M21M) 

New Course--(N18E/ S20M/M21M) 
 An auditor is required to make specific evaluations while forming an opinion in an audit report.” State them. 
Answer 
 
 

 Specific Evaluations by the auditor: 
                In particular, the auditor shall evaluate whether: 

 The financial statements adequately disclose the Significant accounting policies selected and 
applied; 

 The accounting Policies selected and applied are consistent with the applicable financial reporting 
framework and are appropriate; 

 The accounting Estimates made by management are reasonable; 
 The information presented in the financial statements is Relevant, reliable, comparable, and 

understandable; 
 The financial statements provide adequate Disclosures to enable the intended users to understand 

the effect of material transactions and events on the information conveyed in the financial 
statements; and 

 The Terminology used in the financial statements, including the title of each financial statement, is 
appropriate. 

AUTHORS NOTE:     
Shortcut to remember above points: 
Specific STEP evaluation by DR is good. 
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TRUE AND FALSE 
 
TNO- SA 700-1 

                    There is no need of addressee in the Auditor’s report. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor’s report shall be addressed, as appropriate, based on the    circumstances of the engagement. 
Law, regulation or the terms of the engagement may specify to whom the auditor’s report is to be addressed. 
The auditor’s report is normally addressed to those for whom the report is prepared, often either to the 
shareholders or to those charged with governance of the entity whose financial statements are being audited. 

 
TNO-SA-700-2                                                                                                                                                                                 

 In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may not become 
aware of possible bias in management’s judgments. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
In considering the qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, the auditor may become aware of 
possible bias in management’s judgments. The auditor may conclude that lack of neutrality together with 
uncorrected misstatements causes the financial statements to be materially misstated. 
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QNO 
701.01 

Determining Key Audit Matter Old Course--(N19E/N21R) 
New Course—(N20E/N21R) 

 As an auditor of listed company, what are the matters that the auditor should keep in mind while 
determining Key Audit Matter". 

Answer 
 

 Key audit matters 
Those matters that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters are selected from matters 
communicated with those charged with governance. 

1st - It should from matters communicated to TCWG 
2nd - Required SIGNIFICANT AUDITOR ATTENTION 
3rd - It should be of MOST SIGNIFICANCE 
4th - It is should be from audit of CURRENT Period) 

 

 Significant Auditor Attention 
The auditor shall determine, from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, 
those matters that required significant auditor attention in performing the audit. 

 

In making this determination, the auditor shall take into account the following: 
(It gives us guidance on matters where there is generally Significant Auditor Attention) 

 Areas of higher assessed risk of material misstatement, or significant risks identified in 
accordance with SA 315.  

 (E.g.-In Reliance JIO area of Revenue Recognition is considered as significant Risk 
because of Volume and Complexity of Transactions hence it was identifies as KAM 

 

 Significant auditor judgments relating to areas in the financial statements that involved 
significant management judgment, including accounting estimates that have been identified 
as having high estimation uncertainty.  

(E.g. In Mondi Limited a South African Company auditor Deloitte has specified 
Capitalization of Fixed Asset as Key audit matter as it involves significant judgement by 
management regarding which expenses should be capitalized and till what time and 
what should be economic useful life.)   

 The effect on the audit of significant events or transactions that occurred during the period. 
(E.g. In Philips Netherland KPMG has specified Separation of Health Tech Business & 
Lighting Opportunities as separate company as Key Audit Matter, Also Acquisition of 
Volcano Corporation)  

 

 Most Significance 
The auditor shall determine which of the matters determined in accordance with above points were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and therefore are 
the key audit matters.  

(E.g. Matters involving in-depth, frequent, robust interactions , important to users, 
complex, subjective, material etc. For example, GST implementation may be of most 
significance as compared to IDT cases pending against company)  

 
QNO 
701.03 

Is KAM substitute of Disclosure in FST Old Course--(M18R) 
New Course—(N19R/S20M) 

 
Communicating Key Audit Matter is not a substitute for disclosure in the Financial Statements rather 
Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is in the context of the Auditor having formed an 
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. Analyse. 

Answer 
 
 

 Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is not: 
 A substitute for disclosures in the financial statements that the applicable Financial reporting 

framework requires management to make, or that are otherwise necessary to achieve fair 
presentation; 

Part 2 -- [SA 701] COMMUNICATING KEY AUDIT MATTERS IN THE INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S  REPORT 
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 A substitute for the auditor expressing a modified opinion when required by the 
circumstances of a specific audit engagement in accordance with SA 705 (Revised); 

 A substitute for reporting in accordance with SA 570 when a material uncertainty exists 
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on an entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern; or 

 A separate opinion on individual matters. 

 
TRUE AND FALSE 

 
TNO- SA 701-1 

                    
The statutory auditor of ABC Ltd. is of the opinion that communicating key audit matters in the auditor's 
report constitutes a substitute for disclosure in the financial statements. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is not a substitute for disclosures in the financial 
statements that the applicable Financial reporting framework requires management to make, or that are 
otherwise necessary to achieve fair presentation. 

 

http://www.auditguru.in


 

www.auditguru.in                                                               11.10 

 
 

 

QNO 
SA705.01 

Objectives of Standards                                         New Course – (S17M/ S20M) 

 Discuss the objective of the auditor as per Standard on Auditing (SA) 705 Modifications to The Opinion in 
The Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Answer 
 
 

 As per Standard on Auditing (SA) 705 “Modifications to The Opinion in The Independent Auditor’s 
Report”, the objective of the auditor is to express clearly an appropriately modified opinion on the 
financial statements that is necessary when: 

 The auditor concludes, based on the audit evidence obtained, that the financial statements 
as a whole are not free from material misstatement; or 

 The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. 

 
QNO 
SA705.0
3 

Types of Modification New Course – (S17M/ S20M) 

 Discuss the factors affecting the decision of the auditor regarding which type of modified opinion is 
appropriate. 

Answer 
 
 

 The decision regarding which type of modified opinion is appropriate depends upon: 
 The nature of the matter giving rise to the modification, that is, whether the financial 

statements are materially misstated or, in the case of an inability to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence, may be materially misstated; and 

 The auditor’s judgment about the pervasiveness of the effects or possible effects of the 
matter on the financial statements. 

 

 The table below illustrates how the auditor’s judgment about the nature of the matter giving rise to 
the modification, and the pervasiveness of its effects or possible effects on the financial statements, 
affects the type of opinion to be expressed 

 
 
QNO 
SA705.05 

Modification to opinion  Old Course -- (N16R/N17E) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 A modification of opinion 
Answer 
 
 

 Modification of Opinion:  
The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report when- 

 The auditor concludes that, based on the audit evidence obtained, the financial 
statements as a whole are not free from material misstatement; or 

 The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement 

  

Part 3 -- [SA 705] MODIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT 
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QNO 
SA705.07 

Qualified opinion. Old Course -- (P16M/N16R/M17M/N17R) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 State the circumstances which could lead to any of the following in an Auditor’s Report:  Qualified 
opinion. 

Answer 
 
 

 Qualified Opinion:  
 The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when- 

 The auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that 
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, 
to the financial statements; or 

 The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to 
base the opinion, but the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the 
financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be material but 
not pervasive. 

 
QNO 
SA705.09 

Adverse Opinion Old Course -- (P16M/N16R/N17R/M17M/N20E) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 

State the circumstances which could lead to any of the following in an Auditor’s Report: 
Adverse opinion 

OR 
Define the term er in the context of misstatements. What are the effects of pervasive misstatements on 
the financial statements of an enterprise? 

Answer 
 
 

Pervasive Misstatement:  
 
Definition of Pervasive: A term used, in the context of misstatements, to describe the effects on the financial 
statements of misstatements or the possible effects on the financial statements of misstatements, if any, 
that are undetected due to an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.  
 
Pervasive effects on the financial statements are those that, in the auditor’s judgment: 
(i) Are not confined to specific elements, accounts or items of the financial statements;  
 
(ii) If so confined, represent or could represent a substantial proportion of the financial statements; or  
 
(iii) In relation to disclosures, are fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. 

 
QNO 
SA705.11 

Disclaimer of opinion Old Course -- (P16M/N16R/N17R/M17M/N18E) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 Disclaimer of opinion 
Answer  Disclaimer of Opinion:  

 The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence on which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that 
the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could 
be both material and pervasive. 

 The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when, in extremely rare circumstances involving 
multiple uncertainties, the auditor concludes that, notwithstanding having obtained 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding each of the individual uncertainties, it is not 
possible to form an opinion on the financial statements due to the potential interaction of 
the uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the financial statements. 
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QNO 
SA705.18 

Adverse vs qualified opinion #Unique New Course – (S20M) 

 Distinguish between an adverse opinion and a qualified opinion. Also draft an opinion paragraph for both 
types of opinion. 

Answer 
 

An auditor shall express an adverse opinion, when the auditor having obtained sufficient and appropriate 
audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in aggregate are both material and pervasive. 
Whereas, when the auditor, having obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence, concludes that 
misstatements are material but not pervasive, shall express a qualified opinion. 
 

SA705 – “Modifications To The Opinion In The Independent Auditor’s Report” deals with the form and 
content of both types of report. The following are the draft of the opinion paragraphs of the reports. 
 

(a) Adverse Report 
Adverse Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ABC Company Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit and Loss, 
(consolidated statement of changes in equity) and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because of the significance of the matter 
discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements do not give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities, as at 
March 31, 2021, of its consolidated profit/loss, (consolidated position of changes in equity) and the 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 
 

(b). Qualified Report 
Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the standalone financial statements of ABC Company Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of 
changes 
in equity) and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (in which are 
included the Returns for the year ended on that date audited by the branch auditors of the Company’s 
branches located at (location of branches). In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 
2021 and profit/loss, (changes in equity) and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 
QNO 
SA705.25 

Disclaimer-- Case Study Old Course-- (N21R) 
New Course—(N21R) 

 

Delightful Ltd. is a company engaged in the production of smiley balls. During the FY 2020-21 the company 
transferred its accounts to computerised system (SAP) from manual system of accounts. Since the 
employees of the company were not well versed with the SAP system, there were many errors in the 
accounting during the transition period. As such the statutory auditors of the company were not able to 
extract correct data and reports from the system. Such data was not available manually also. Further, the 
employees and the management of the company were not supportive in providing the requisite information 
to the audit team. The auditor believes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected 
misstatements could be both material and pervasive. Explain the kind of audit report that the statutory 
auditor of the company should issue in this case. 

Answer The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence on which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the 
financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive. 
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The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when, in extremely rare circumstances involving multiple 
uncertainties, the auditor concludes that, notwithstanding having obtained sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence regarding each of the individual uncertainties, it is not possible to form an opinion on 
the financial statements due to the potential interaction of the uncertainties and their possible 
cumulative effect on the financial statements. 
 
In the present case Delightful Ltd, the statutory auditor of the company is unable to extract correct 
data and reports from the SAP system for conduct of audit. Also, such data and reports are not 
available manually. Moreover, the auditor believes that the possible effects on the financial 
statements of undetected misstatements could be both material and 
pervasive.  
 
As such, the statutory auditor of Delightful Ltd. should give a disclaimer of opinion. 

 
QNO 
SA705.28 

Effect of Qualification on Basis of Opinion Section New Course – (N20E) 

 What an auditor should state in "Basis for opinion" section of auditor's report and when the auditor modifies 
the opinion on the financial statements, what amendments he should make in this section? 

Answer An auditor should state in “Basis for Opinion” section of Auditor’s Report as under: Basis for 
Opinion: 
 
The auditor’s report shall include a section, directly following the Opinion section, with the heading 
“Basis for Opinion”, that: 
(i) States that the audit was conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing; 
(ii) Refers to the section of the auditor’s report that describes the auditor’s responsibilities under the 
SAs; 
(iii) Includes a statement that the auditor is independent of the entity in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to the audit and has fulfilled the auditor’s other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. 
(iv) States whether the auditor believes that the audit evidence the auditor has obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor’s opinion. 
 
Amendments an Auditor should make : 
 
When the auditor modifies the opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall,  in addition to 
the specific elements required by SA 700 (Revised): 
(i) Amend the heading “Basis for Opinion” required by para of SA 700 (Revised) to “Basis for Qualified 
Opinion,” “Basis for Adverse Opinion,” or “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion,” as appropriate; and 
(ii) Within this section, include a description of the matter giving rise to the modification. 

 
QNO 
SA 705.30 

Effect of Disclaimer on Auditor Responsibility New Course – (M21E) 

 
CA Guru is in the process of preparing the final audit report of JPA Private Limited and would like to disclaim 
his opinion on the financial statements due to an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence. 
How CA Guru shall amend the description of the auditor's responsibilities as required by SA 700 (Revised)? 

Answer Since the auditor, CA Guru, disclaims an opinion on the financial statements due to an inability to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence of JPA Pvt Ltd, the auditor (CA Guru) shall amend the 
description of the auditor’s responsibilities required by SA 700 (Revised) to include only the following: 
  
(a) A statement that the auditor’s responsibility is to conduct an audit of the entity’s financial 
statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report; 
(b) A statement that, however, because of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Disclaimer of 
Opinion section, the auditor was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a 
basis for an audit opinion on the financial statements , and 
(c) The statement about auditor independence and other ethical responsibilities required  
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by SA 700 (Revised) 

 
TRUE AND FALSE 

 
TNO- SA 705-1 

                    An auditor should issue disclaimer of opinion when there is difference of opinion between him and the 
management on a particular point. State true or false with reason:   

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence on which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial 
statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive. 
 

In case of difference of opinion, either the auditor will issue qualified report or adverse report and not 
disclaimer of opinion. 

 
TNO- SA 705-2 

                    
The auditor will issue a disclaimer of opinion if he disagrees with the management with regard to the 
acceptability of the Accounting policies and the inadequacy of disclosures in the financial statements. State 
true or false with reason:    

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall disclaim an opinion when the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence on which to base the opinion, and the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial 
statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be both material and pervasive. 
 

If the auditor disagrees with the management in the matters relating to the acceptability of Accounting 
policies selected and inadequacy of disclosures in the financial statements, he should issue a qualified report 
or express an adverse opinion. 

 
TNO- SA 705-3 

                    When the auditor concludes that misstatements are material, but not pervasive, to the financial 
statements, he should express disclaimer of opinion. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
As per SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, the auditor shall express 
a qualified opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that 
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial statements. 

 
 
TNO- SA 705-4 

                    

The auditor shall express an adverse opinion when: 
(a) The auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, 
individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial statements; or 
(b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the opinion, but 
the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if 
any, could be material but not pervasive 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when: 
(a) The auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, 
individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial statements; or 
(b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the opinion, but the 
auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, 
could be material but not pervasive  
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TNO- SA 705-5 

                    SA-700 deals with modification to the opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
SA 700 deal with forming an opinion and reporting of financial statement whereas SA 705 deals with 
modifications to the opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report. 

 
TNO- SA 705-6 

                    An auditor issues unqualified opinion when he concludes that the financial statements give true and fair 
view. 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
An unqualified opinion should be expressed when the auditor concludes that the financial statements give a 
true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework used for the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 

It indicates, implicitly, that any changes in the accounting principles or in the method of their application, and 
the effects thereof, have been properly determined and disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
TNO- SA 705-7 

                    If financial statements are misstated, and in the auditor’s judgment such misstatement is material and 
pervasive, he should issue a qualified opinion. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
As per SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, the auditor shall express 
an adverse opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that 
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive to the financial statements. 
However, the auditor shall express qualified opinion when he concludes that misstatement, individually or in 
aggregate are material but not pervasive. 

 
TNO- SA 705-8 
                    The auditor cannot modify the opinion in the auditor's report. 
Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report when the auditor concludes that, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, the financial statements as a whole are not free from material misstatement or the 
auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement 

 
TNO- SA 705-9 

                    
The auditor shall express ________opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive 
to the financial statements 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall express an unmodified opinion when the auditor concludes that the financial statements 
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 

 
TNO- SA 705-10 

                    
The auditor shall express a disclaimer of opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and 
pervasive to the financial statements. 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
The auditor shall express an adverse opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence, concludes that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive to 
the financial statements 
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TNO- SA 705-11 

                    The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when the auditor concludes that the financial statements are 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall express an unmodified opinion when the auditor concludes that the financial statements 
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 

 
TNO- SA 705-12 

                    

The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when:    
(a) The auditor concludes that misstatements are material but not pervasive to the financial statements; 

 OR 
(b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, but the auditor concludes that 
the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any, could be material but 
not pervasive 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
The auditor shall express a qualified opinion when: 
(a) The auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, concludes that misstatements, 
individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial statements; or 
(b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on which to base the opinion, but 
the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if 
any, could be material but not pervasive 

 
TNO- SA 705-14 

                    
The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report only when the auditor concludes that, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, the financial statements as a whole are not free from material 
misstatement. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report when: 
(a) The auditor concludes that, based on the audit evidence obtained, the financial statements as a whole are 
not free from material misstatement; or 
(b) The auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. 

 
TNO- SA 705-15 
                    The auditor shall not modify the opinion in the auditor's report. 
Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report when the auditor concludes that, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, the financial statements as a whole are not free from material misstatement or the 
auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement. 

 
TNO- SA 705-16 

                    In respect of audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor shall be responsible for the 
work allocated to such joint auditor only. 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
In respect of audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor shall be responsible only for the 
work allocated to such joint auditor including proper execution of the audit procedures. 
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TNO- SA 705-18 

                    When the auditor includes an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor need not include 
the paragraph within a separate section. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
When the auditor includes an Other Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall include the 
paragraph within a separate section with the heading “Other Matter,” or other appropriate heading. 

 
TNO-SA-705-19 

 When the auditor has to express an adverse opinion, he need not communicate with those charged with 
governance as this may have an impact on payment of his audit fees. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
When the auditor expects to modify the opinion in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall communicate with 
those charged with governance the circumstances that led to the expected modification and the wording of 
the modification 

 
TNO-SA-705-20 

 Instead of modifying an opinion in accordance with SA 705, the statutory auditor can use Key Audit Matter 
paragraph in the audit report with an unmodified opinion. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Communicating key audit matters in the auditor’s report is not a substitute for the auditor expressing a 
modified opinion when required by the circumstances of a specific audit engagement in accordance with SA 
705 (Revised); 
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QNO 
706.01 

EMP – Master Answer                                                              Old Course—(N17E/N19M/N20M/N20R/N20E)  
New Course--(M18E/M19R/S20M/N20M/N20R) 

 

Define Emphasis of Matter paragraph. When the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in 
the auditor’s report? Also explain how the auditor would include an Emphasis of Matter in the auditor’s 
report. 

OR 
Define Emphasis of Matter Paragraph and how it should be disclosed in the Independent Auditor's Report? 

OR 
What is an Emphasis of Matter paragraph, when it is used, and manner of its use in an audit report? 

Answer 
 
 

 Definition  
A paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately presented or 
disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance that it is 
fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. 

 

 Conditions 
If the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’ attention to a matter presented or disclosed in the 
financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance that it is fundamental to 
users’ understanding of the financial statements, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter 
paragraph in the auditor’s report provided: 

 The auditor would not be required to modify the opinion in accordance with SA 705 
(Revised) as a result of the matter; and 

 When SA 701 applies, the matter has not been determined to be a key audit matter to be 
communicated in the auditor’s report. 

 Content  
When the auditor includes an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall: 

 Include the paragraph within a separate section of the auditor’s report with an appropriate 
heading that includes the term “Emphasis of Matter”; 

 Include in the paragraph a clear reference to the matter being emphasized and to where 
relevant disclosures that fully describe the matter can be found in the financial statements. 
The paragraph shall refer only to information presented or disclosed in the financial 
statements; and (No need to give reference of BOD report, Annual Report etc.) 

 Indicate that the auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect of the matter emphasized. 
 

TRUE AND FALSE 
 

TNO- SA 706-1 

                    
Other matter paragraph is paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately 
presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance 
that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Emphasis of Matter paragraph is a paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter 
appropriately presented or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such 
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

  

Part 4 -- [SA 706] EMPHASIS OF MATTER PARAGRAPHS & OTHER MATTER PARAGRAPHS 
IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (REVISED) 
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+ 
 

 

 

QNO 
710.01 

Comparatives-Audit Procedures Old Course -- (P16M/N17M) 
New Course – Relevant, Concept Covered in New Course SM 

 What are the auditor’s responsibilities in respect of corresponding figures? 
Answer 
 
 

 Basic Evaluation of comparative information: 
 The Auditor shall determine whether the Financial Statements include the Comparative 

Information required by the Applicable Financial Reporting Framework and whether such 
information is appropriately classified. 

 For this Purpose, the Auditor shall evaluate whether 
 The comparative Information agrees with the amounts & other disclosures 

presented in the prior period, and 
 The Accounting Policies reflected in the Comparative Information are consistent 

with those applied in the current period or, if there have been changes in Accounting 
Policies, whether those changes have been properly accounted for and adequately 
presented and disclosed. 

 

 Additional procedures in case of Material Misstatement: 
 If the Auditor of becomes aware of a possible material misstatement in the Comparative 

Information while performing the current period audit, he shall perform such additional audit 
procedures as are necessary in the Circumstances, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to determine whether a material misstatement exists. 

 If the Auditor had audited the Prior Period’s Financial Statements, he shall also follow the 
relevant requirements of SA 560 on the effect of Subsequent Events. 

 
QNO 
710.03 

Definition of Comparative, 2 Approaches & Differences                                                   New Course -- (M19R) 

 

The nature of the comparative information that is presented in an entity’s financial statements depends on 
the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. There are two different broad 
approaches to the auditor’s reporting responsibilities in respect of such comparative information: 
corresponding figures and comparative financial statements. Explain clearly stating the essential audit 
reporting differences between the approaches. Also define comparative information and audit procedures 
regarding comparative information. 

Answer 
 
 

 The nature of the comparative information that is presented in an entity’s financial statements 
depends on the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework. There are two 
different broad approaches to the auditor’s reporting responsibilities in respect of such comparative 
information: corresponding figures and comparative financial statements. The approach to be 
adopted is often specified by law or regulation but may also be specified in the terms of engagement. 
 

 The essential audit reporting differences between the approaches are: 
 For corresponding figures, the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements refers to the 

current period only; whereas 
 For comparative financial statements, the auditor’s opinion refers to each period for which 

financial statements are presented. 
 

 Definition of Comparative information –  
The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements in respect of one or more prior 
periods in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 
 

 Audit Procedures regarding comparative information 
The auditor shall determine whether the financial statements include the comparative information 
required by the applicable financial reporting framework and whether such information is 
appropriately classified. For this purpose, the auditor shall evaluate whether: 

 The comparative information agrees with the amounts and other disclosures presented in 
the prior period; and 

Part 5 -- [SA 710] COMPARATIVE INFORMATION CORRESPONDING FIGURES & 
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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 The accounting policies reflected in the comparative information are consistent with those 
applied in the current period or, if there have been changes in accounting policies, whether 
those changes have been properly accounted for and adequately presented and disclosed. 

 
QNO 
710.05 

Reference to Comparatives in Corresponding Figures Approach                                                                                       New Course -- (N18M/N19E) 

 When corresponding figures are presented, the auditor’s opinion shall not refer to the corresponding 
figures except in some circumstances. Explain those circumstances. 

Answer 
 
 

 When corresponding figures are presented, the auditor’s opinion shall not refer to the 
corresponding figures except in the following circumstances. 

 If the auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion, 
a disclaimer of opinion, or an adverse opinion and the matter which gave rise to the 
modification is unresolved, the auditor shall modify the auditor’s opinion on the current 
period’s financial statements. In the Basis for Modification paragraph in the auditor’s report, 
the auditor shall either: 

 Refer to both the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures in the 
description of the matter giving rise to the modification when the effects or possible 
effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are material; or 

 In other cases, explain that the audit opinion has been modified because of the 
effects or possible effects of the unresolved matter on the comparability of the 
current period’s figures and the corresponding figures. 
 

 If the auditor obtains audit evidence that a material misstatement exists in the prior period financial 
statements on which an unmodified opinion has been previously issued, the auditor shall verify 
whether the misstatement has been dealt with as required under the applicable financial reporting 
framework and, if that is not the case, the auditor shall express a qualified opinion or an adverse 
opinion in the auditor’s report on the current period financial statements, modified with respect to 
corresponding figures included. 
 

 Prior Period Financial Statements Not Audited-  
If the prior period financial statements were not audited, the auditor shall state in an Other Matter 
paragraph in the auditor’s report that the corresponding figures are unaudited. Such a statement 
does not, however, relieve the auditor of the requirement to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence that the opening balances do not contain misstatements that materially affect the current 
period’s financial statements. 
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QNO 
BA.01 

 RBI Regulator                                                                                              New Course-- (S17M/S20M) 

 The functioning of banking industry in India is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India which acts as the 
Central Bank of our country. Explain 

Answer 
 
 

 The functioning of banking industry in India is regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) which 
acts as the Central Bank of our country.  

 RBI is responsible for development and supervision of the constituents of the Indian financial 
system (which comprises banks and non-banking financial institutions) as well as for 
determining, in conjunction with the Central Government, the monetary and credit policies 
keeping in with the need of the hour. 

 Important functions of RBI are (Shortcut RCB)  
 Regulator 

Besides, RBI has also been entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the activities 
of commercial and other banks. No bank can commence the business of banking or open 
new branches without obtaining license from RBI. The RBI also has the power to inspect 
any bank. 

 Currency Related 
 issuance of currency;  
 regulation of currency issue;  

 Banker 
 acting as banker to the central and state governments; and  
 acting as banker to commercial and other types of banks including term-lending 

institutions.  
 
QNO 
BA.02 

Types of Banks New Course-- (M21M) 

 There are different types of banks prevailing in India. Explain giving examples of such banks. 

Answer There are different types of banking institutions prevailing in India which are as follows: 
 Commercial Banks Regional Rural Banks 
 Co-operative Banks. Payment Banks 
 Development Banks (more commonly 

known as ‘Term-Lending Institutions’). Small Finance Banks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.Commercial banks are the most wide spread banking institutions in India, that provide a number of 
products and services to general public and other segments of economy. Two of its main functions 
are:- 
(a) accepting deposits and 
(b) granting advances. 
 
2. Regional Rural Banks known as RRBs are the banks that have been set up in rural areas in different 
states of the country to cater to the basic banking and financial needs of the rural communities. 
Examples are :- Punjab Garmin Bank, Tripura Garmin Bank, Allahabad UP Garmin Bank , Andhra Pradesh 
Grameen Vikas Bank, etc. 
 
3. Co-operative Banks function like Commercial Banks only but are set up on the basis of Cooperative 
Principles and registered under the Cooperative Societies Act of the respective state or the Multistate 

CHAPTER 
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Cooperative Societies Act and usually cater to the needs of the agricultural and rural sectors. Examples 
are:- The Gujarat State Co-operative Bank Ltd., Chhattisgarh Rajya Sahakari Bank Mayardit, etc. 
 
4. Payments Banks are a new type of banks which have been recently introduced by RBI. They are 
allowed to accept restricted deposits but they cannot issue loans and credit cards. 
However, customers can open Current & Savings accounts and also avail the facility of ATM cum Debit 
cards, Internet-banking & Mobile banking. Examples are:- Airtel Payments Bank India Post Payments 
Bank, Paytm Payments Bank, etc. 
 
5. Development Banks had been conceptualized to provide funds for infrastructural facilities important 
for the economic growth of the country. Examples are:- Industrial Finance Corporation of India (IFCI), 
Industrial Development Bank of India (IDBI), Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI), etc. 
 
6. Small Finance Banks have been set up by RBI to make available basic financial and banking facilities 
to the unserved and unorganised sectors like small marginal farmers, small & micro business units, etc. 
Examples are:- Equites Small Finance Bank, AU Small Finance Bank ,etc. 

 
QNO 
BA.02.50 

Funded Loans & Its types #Unique New Course-- (M21M) 

 In case of a Bank, explain the meaning of Funded loans. Also give examples. 

Answer Funded loans are those loans where there is an actual transfer of funds from the bank to the borrower. 
Advances comprise of funded amounts by way of: 
· Term loans 
· Cash credits, Overdrafts, Demand Loans 
· Bills Discounted and Purchased 
· Participation on Risk Sharing basis 
· Interest-bearing Staff Loans 

 
QNO  
BA .03 

Engagement Team (Discussion)                                                                                        New Course--   
(S17M/M18M/M19M/M19E/N19E/S20M/M21R/N21R)    

 

The engagement team of FRN & Co.- Auditors of Bank of Baroda held discussions to gain better 
understanding of the bank and its environment, including internal control, and also to assess the potential 
for material misstatements of the financial statements. The discussion between the members of the 
engagement team and the audit engagement partner are being done on the susceptibility of the bank’s 
financial statements to material misstatements. These discussions are ordinarily done at the planning stage 
of an audit. Analyse and Advise the matters to be discussed in the engagement team discussion. 

OR 
The· discussion between members of the engagement team members and the audit engagement partner 
should be done on the susceptibility of the bank's financial statements to material misstatements. Briefly 
discuss the points ordinarily included in discussion of the engagement team. 

OR 
You are appointed as an auditor of Banking Co. and hold discussions with engagement team. List out 
matters which you would discuss at the planning stage of an audit to gain better understanding of the bank 
and its environment. 
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Answer 
 
 

 The engagement team should hold discussions to gain better understanding of the bank and its 
environment, including internal control, and also to assess the potential for material 
misstatements of the financial statements. All these discussions should be appropriately 
documented for future reference.  
 

 The discussion provides: (These points are like benefits) 
 An opportunity for more experienced engagement team members, including the audit 

engagement partner, to share their insights based on their knowledge of the bank and 
its environment. (E.g. IT systems data is not reliable) 

 An opportunity for engagement team members to exchange information about the 
bank’s business risks. (E.g. Gave huge loans to particular business family) 

 An understanding amongst the engagement team members about effect of the results 
of the risk assessment procedures on other aspects of the audit, including decisions 
about the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. 
 

 The discussion between the members of the engagement team and the audit engagement 
partner should be done on the susceptibility of the bank’s financial statements to material 
misstatements. These discussions are ordinarily done at the planning stage of an audit.  
 

 The engagement team discussion ordinarily includes a discussion of the following matters:  
 

Errors which have been identified in prior years; (Investment Valuation) 
Errors that may be more likely to occur; (NPA Provisioning) 

 
Method by which fraud might be perpetrated by 
bank personnel or others within particular account 
balances and/or disclosures; 

(Non-Banking Asset) 
 

Need to alert for information or other conditions 
that indicates, that a material misstatement may 
have occurred (e.g., the bank’s application of 
accounting policies in the given facts and 
circumstances) 

(Low Profitability Ratio) 
 

Audit responses to RMM 
 

" Using automated audit software 
because heavily dependent on core 
banking software" 

Need to maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit engagement 

Cautiousness before relying on 
evidence obtained 

 

 
QNO 
BA .04 

Effective risk management system #Unique New Course-- (M19E/S20M) 

 Mr. Piyush, the Bank Manager develops controls to aid in managing key business and financial risks. Discuss 
the various requirements for an effective risk management system in a bank 

Answer 
 

An effective risk management system in a bank generally requires the following: 
 

 Oversight and involvement in the control process by those charged with governance:  
Those charged with governance (BOD/Chief Executive Officer) should approve written risk management 
policies. The policies should be consistent with the bank’s business objectives and strategies, capital 
strength, management expertise, regulatory requirements and the types and amounts of risk it regards 
as acceptable. 

 

 Identification, measurement and monitoring of risks:  
Risks that could significantly impact the achievement of bank’s goals should be identified, measured and 
monitored against pre-approved limits and criteria. 
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 Control activities:  
A bank should have appropriate controls to manage its risks, including effective segregation of duties 
(particularly, between front and back offices), accurate measurement and reporting of positions, 
verification and approval of transactions, reconciliation of positions and results, setting of limits, 
reporting and approval of exceptions, physical security and contingency planning. 

 

 Monitoring activities:  
Risk management models, methodologies and assumptions used to measure and manage risk should be 
regularly assessed and updated. This function may be conducted by the independent risk management 
unit. 

 

 Reliable information systems:  
Banks require reliable information systems that provide adequate financial, operational and compliance 
information on a timely and consistent basis. Those charged with governance and management require 
risk management information that is easily understood and that enables them to assess the changing 
nature of the bank’s risk profile. 

  

 
QNO 
BA.05 

NPA (Reversal of Income)                                                                                     New Course-- (S17M/S20M/M20R) 

 

Write a short note on reversal of income under bank audit. 
OR 

In view of the significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection of income arising in respect of non-
performing assets, the guidelines require that banks should not recognize income on non-performing assets 
until it is actually realised. When a credit facility is classified as non-performing for the first time, interest 
accrued and credited to the income account in the corresponding previous year which has not been realized 
should be reversed or provided for. This will apply to Government guaranteed accounts also. Analyse and 
Explain. 

Answer 
 
 

 Reversal of Interest Income for First Time NPAs / Effect on Other Incomes / Ways of 
Accounting to give Effect of Reversal 

 If any advance, including bills purchased and discounted, becomes NPA as at the close of any 
year, the entire interest accrued and credited to income account in the past periods, should 
be reversed or provided for if the same is not realized. This will apply to Government 
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guaranteed accounts also. 
 In view of the significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection of income arising in 

respect of non-performing assets, the guidelines require that banks should not recognize 
income on non-performing assets until it is actually realized. When a credit facility is 
classified as non-performing for the first time, interest accrued and credited to the income 
account in the corresponding previous year which has not been realized should be reversed 
or provided for. This will apply to Government guaranteed accounts also. 

 

 Memorandum Account:   
On an account turning NPA, banks should reverse the interest already charged and not collected by 
debiting Profit and Loss account and stop further application of interest. However, banks may continue 
to record such accrued I n t e r e s t  in a Memorandum account in their books for control purposes. 
For the purpose of computing Gross Advances, interest recorded in the Memorandum account should 
not be taken into account. 

 In respect of NPAs, fees, commission and similar income that have accrued should cease to 
accrue in the current period and should be reversed or provided for with respect to past 
periods, if uncollected. 

 Further, in case of banks which have wrongly recognized income in the past should reverse 
the interest if it was recognized as income during the current year or make a provision for 
an equivalent amount if it was recognized as income in the previous year(s). 

 Furthermore, the auditor should enquire if there are any large debits in the Interest Income 
account that have not been explained. It should be enquired is there are any 
communications from borrowers pointing out differences in Interest charge, and whether 
action as justified has been taken in this regard. 

 

 Interest on advances against Term Deposits, National Savings Certificates (NSCs), Indira Vikas Patras 
(IVPs), Kisan Vikas Patras (KVPs) and Life policies may be taken to income account on the due date, 
provided adequate margin is available in the accounts. 

 
QNO 
BA.07 

NPA (Agriculture) 
NPA (Erosion)                                                                                        

New Course-- (N18E) 

 

Ramjilal & Co. had been allotted the branch audit of a nationalized bank for the year ended 31st March, 
2018. In the audit planning, the partner of Ramjial & Co., observed that the allotted branches are 
predominantly based in rural areas and major portion of the advances were for agricultural purpose.” 
Now he needs your assistance on the following points so as to incorporate them in the audit plan : 
(i) for determination of NPA norms for agricultural advances 
(ii) for accounts where there is erosion in the value of security /frauds committed by the borrowers. 

Answer 
 
 

 Agricultural Advances:  
A loan granted for short duration crops will be treated as NPA, if the instalment of principal or 
interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons and, a loan granted for long duration crops 
will be treated as NPA, if the instalment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one 
crop season. 
 

As per the guidelines, “long duration” crops would be crops with crop season longer than one year 
and crops, which are not “long duration” crops would be treated as “short duration” crops. The 
crop season for each crop, which means the period up to harvesting of the crops raised, would be as 
determined by the State Level Bankers Committee in each State. Depending upon the duration of 
crops raised by an agriculturist, the above NPA norms would also be made applicable to agricultural 
term loans availed of by him. 
 

 Erosion in Value of Securities/ Frauds Committed by Borrowers: 
 In respect of accounts where there are potential threats for recovery on account of erosion in the 
value of security or non-availability of security and existence of other factors such as frauds 
committed by borrowers, such accounts need not go through the stages of asset classification. In 
such cases, the asset should be straightaway classified as doubtful or loss asset, as appropriate. 
Further, 

 Erosion in the value of securities by more than 50% of the value assessed by the bank or 
accepted by RBI inspection team at the time of last inspection, as the case may be, would 
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be considered as “significant”, requiring the asset to be classified as doubtful straightaway 
and provided for adequately. 

 The realizable value of security as assessed by bank/approved valuers /RBI is less than 10% 
of the outstanding in the borrower accounts, the existence of the security should be 
ignored, and the asset should be classified as loss asset. In such cases the asset should either 
be written off or fully provided for. 

 
QNO 
BA.07.50 

NPA (Cash Credit- Cases Study) New Course-- (M21E) 

 

N Ltd. has been sanctioned a Cash Credit Facility by XYZ Bank Ltd. for INR 1 crore and drawing power as per 
the Stock Statements furnished for the last quarter is INR 80 Lakh. Outstanding balance in the account is INR 
75 lakh. Interest charged to the account is INR 3.5 Lakh and total credit into the account for the quarter is 
INR 2.5 Lakh. As an auditor how will you report this account in your report. 

Answer Out of Order: An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if: 
 
➢ the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of the sanctioned limit/drawing power or 
➢ In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating account is less than the sanctioned 
limit/drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of Balance Sheet; 
or 
➢ Credits are there but are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, these 
accounts should be treated as ‘out of order’. 
 
Applying the above to the given case of N Ltd, its Drawing power is ` 80 Lakhs, although outstanding 
balance in the account is ` 75 Lakhs, but still the account would be reported as out of order because 
credits in the account are not sufficient to cover the interest debited during the same period 

 
QNO 
BA.08 

NPA (Advances under Consortium) New Course-- (N20E) 

 Explain "Advances under Consortium" in the context of Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset 
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances. 

Answer Advances under Consortium: Consortium advances should be based on the record of recovery of the 
respective individual member banks and other aspects having a bearing on the recoverability of the 
advances. Where the remittances by the borrower under consortium lending arrangements are pooled 
with one bank and/or where the bank receiving remittances is not parting with the share of other 
member banks, the account should be treated as not serviced in the books of the other member banks 
and therefore, an NPA.  
The banks participating in the consortium, therefore, need to arrange to get their share of recovery 
transferred from the lead bank or to get an express consent from the lead bank for the transfer of their 
share of recovery, to ensure proper asset classification in their respective books. 

 
QNO 
BA.09 

Difference in provisioning of NPA- Secured/Unsecured #Unique New Course-- (N19E) 

 
 

"There is no difference in provisioning of NPA as regards to categories of NPA, whether the debt is secured 
or unsecured." Critically evaluate the statement on the basis of provisioning norms of NPA of nationalised 
bank. 

  
Categories of NPA Provision 

% 
 Sub-standard Assets  

 Secured Exposures 15 

 Unsecured Exposures 25 
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 Doubtful Advances – Secured Portion  
 For Doubtful up to 1 year 25 
 For Doubtful > 1 year and up to 3 years 40 
 For Doubtful > 3 years 100 

  
 Doubtful Advances – Unsecured Portion 100 

 
Sub-standard Assets — Sub-standard asset is one which has been classified as NPA for a period not exceeding 
12 months. In the case of term loans, those where installments of principal are overdue for period exceeding 
one year should be treated as sub-standard. In other words, such an asset will have well-defined credit 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt and are characterized by the distinct possibility that 
the bank will sustain some loss, if deficiencies are not corrected. 
 

Doubtful Assets — A doubtful asset is one which has remained sub-standard for a period of at least 12 
months. A loan classified as doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in that classified as sub-standard with 
added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently 
known facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. 

 
QNO  
BA.11 

Audit of Advances New Course-- (N19R/M21R) 

 

Advances generally constitute the major part of the assets of the bank. There are large number of borrowers 
to whom variety of advances are granted. The audit of advances requires the major attention from the 
auditors. In carrying out audit of advances, the auditor is primarily concerned with obtaining evidence 
about, among other points, the amounts included in balance sheet in respect of advances are outstanding 
at the date of the balance sheet. Explain 

Answer 
 
 

 Advances generally constitute the major part of the assets of the bank. There are large number of 
borrowers to whom variety of advances are granted. The audit of advances requires the major 
attention from the auditors. In carrying out audit of advances, the auditor is primarily concerned 
with obtaining evidence about the following: 

 Amounts due to the bank are appropriately supported by Loan documents and other 
documents as applicable to the nature of advances.            

(Partnership Deed, NOC of all partners, project report, income tax returns, application 
forms etc.)  

 
 
 

 There are no unrecorded advances. 
                                   (Like finance lease, of balance sheet financing or shown as investments) 

 

 Advances represent amount due to the bank. 
 (In consortium, take out finance, restructuring, rescheduling etc.) 

 

 Amounts included in balance sheet in respect of advances are outstanding at the date of the 
balance sheet.  

(Match balance in balance sheet to advance schedule, which is matched to subsidiary 
ledgers and control accounts, loan should not be time barred) 

 

 The advances are disclosed, classified and described in accordance with recognized 
accounting policies and practices and relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.   

(Secured, Unsecured etc.) 
 

 Appropriate provisions towards advances have been made as per the RBI norms, 
Accounting Standards and generally accepted accounting practices. The stated basis of 
valuation of advances is appropriate and properly applied, and that the recoverability of 
advances is recognized in their valuation. 
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QNO  
BA.13 

Audit of Advances- Evaluation of Internal Control New Course-- (N19R) 

 The auditor can obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about advances by study and evaluation of 
internal controls relating to advances. Explain in the context of Audit of Banks. 

Answer 
 
 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
The auditor can obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about advances by study and evaluation 
of internal controls relating to advances, and by: 

 examining loan documentation; 
 examining the validity of the recorded amounts;  

(Subsidiary ledgers / Controls Accounts / Confirmations) 
 reviewing the operation of the accounts; 
 examining the existence, enforceability and valuation of the security; 
 checking compliance with RBI norms including appropriate classification and provisioning; 

and 
 carrying out appropriate analytical procedures. 

 

 Examine all large advances other may be on sampling basis, sampling extent depend on I.C 
assessment 

 In carrying out his substantive procedures, the auditor should examine all large advances 
while other advances may be examined on a sampling basis.  

 The extent of sample checking would also depend on the auditor’s assessment of efficacy of 
internal controls.  

 

 Problem accounts in detail unless amount insignificant 
The accounts identified to be problem accounts however need to be examined in detail unless the 
amount involved is insignificant.  
 

 
 

 Advances sanctioned during the year or adversely commented 
Advances which are sanctioned during the year or which are adversely commented by RBI 
inspection team, concurrent auditors, bank’s internal inspection, etc. should generally be included 
in the auditor’s review. 

 
QNO  
BA.15 

Audit of Advances-Audit evidence master answer Old Course--(M18R) 
New Course-- (N19M) 

 

Your firm of Chartered Accountants has been appointed as the Auditor of two branches of OBC which are 
located in the Industrial area. Considering that the location of the branches of bank in industrial area, these 
would be advances oriented branches and audit of advances would require the major attention of the 
auditors. Advise how would you proceed to obtain evidence in respect of audit of advances. 

Answer 
 

Refer BA. 11 ,13. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

QNO  
BA.17 

Advances (Internal Control)                                                  New Course-- (N18E/M19M/M19R/S20M) 

 
The auditor should examine the efficacy of various internal controls over advances in case of Banks to 
determine the nature, timing and extent of his substantive procedures. Explain what is included in the 
internal controls over advances. 

Answer 
 
 

 The auditor should examine the efficacy of various internal controls over advances to determine the 
nature, timing and extent of his substantive procedures. In general, the internal controls over 
advances should include, inter alia, the following: 

 The bank should make an advance only after satisfying itself as to the credit worthiness of 
the borrower and after obtaining sanction from the appropriate authorities of the bank. 
The sanction for an advance should specify, among other things, the limit of borrowing, 
nature of security, margin to be kept, interest, terms of repayment etc. It also needs to be 
ensured that the loans sanctioned are as per the Loan Policy of the bank and adhere to the 
regulatory (RBI) norms unless a specific exemption is taken in this regard. 
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 All the necessary documents  
 (e.g., agreements, demand promissory notes, letters of hypothecation, etc.) should 

be executed by the parties before advances are made. 
 

 Sufficient margin as specified in the sanction letter should be kept against securities taken 
so as to cover for any decline in the value thereof. The availability of sufficient margin needs 
to be ensured at regular intervals. 

 The compliance with the terms of sanction and end use of funds should be ensured. 
 (Maintenance of Stock, Regular Reporting, Permission for new loan) 

 If the securities taken are in the nature of shares, debentures, etc., the ownership of the 
same should be transferred in the name of the bank and the effective control of such 
securities be retained as a part of documentation. 

 

 All securities requiring registration should be registered in the name of the bank or 
otherwise accompanied by documents sufficient to give title to the bank. 

 

 In the case of goods in the possession of the bank, contents of the packages should be test 
checked at the time of receipt. The god owns should be frequently inspected by responsible 
officers of the branch concerned, in addition to the inspectors of the bank. 

 

 Surprise checks should be made in respect of hypothecated goods not in the physical 
possession of the bank. 

 

 As soon as any increase or decrease takes place in the securities or their value, proper 
entries should be made in the Drawing Power Book and Daily Balance Book. These entries 
should be checked by an officer. 

 

 The accounts should be kept within both the drawing power and the sanctioned limit. 
  

 All the accounts which exceed the sanctioned limit or drawing power or are otherwise 
irregular should be brought to the notice of the controlling authority regularly. 

 

 The operation of each advance account should be reviewed at least once a year, and at 
more frequent intervals in the case of large advances. 

 
QNO 
BA.18 

Audit of interest expense - Audit approach and 
procedure  

New Course-- (M20R/N21R) 

 

In carrying out an audit of interest expense, the auditor is primarily concerned with assessing the overall 
reasonableness of the amount of interest expense. Analyse and explain stating the audit approach and 
procedure in regard to interest expense. 
 

Answer 
 

 

 Reasonableness of Interest Expense Perform Analytical Procedures 
In carrying out an audit of Interest expended, the auditor is primarily concerned with assessing the 
overall reasonableness of the amount of interest expense by analysing ratios of interest paid on 
different types of deposits and borrowings to the average quantum of the respective liabilities during 
the year. In modern day banking, the entries for interest expended are automatically generated through 
a batch process in the CBS system. (Core Banking System) 

 Compare Actual Average Interest Expense with Previous Year 
The auditor should also compare the average rate of interest paid on the relevant deposits with 
the corresponding figures for the previous years and analyse any material differences. 

 

 Month on Month Interest Cost Analysis 
The auditor should obtain general ledger break-up for the interest expense incurred on deposits 
(savings and term deposits) and borrowing each month/quarter. The auditor should analyses 
month on month (or quarter) cost analysis and document the reasons for the variances as per the 
benchmark stated. He should examine whether the interest expense considered in the cost analysis 
agrees with the general ledger. 

 

 Compare Quarterly Weighted Average with Actual Average Interest Rate  
The auditor should obtain from the bank an analysis of various types of deposits outstanding at the 
end of each quarter. From such information, the auditor may work out a weighted average interest 
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rate. The auditor may then compare this rate with the actual average rate of interest paid on the 
relevant deposits as per the annual accounts and enquire into the difference, if material. 

 

 Check process on sample basis 
The auditor should understand the process of computation of the average balance and re-compute 
the same on sample basis. 

 

 Test of Details on Sampling Basis 
The auditor should, on a test check basis, verify the calculation of interest and satisfy himself that: 

 Interest has been provided on all deposits up to the date of the balance sheet; and verify whether 
there is any excess or short credit of material amount. 

 Interest rates are in accordance with the bank’s internal regulations, of the RBI directives, and 
agreements with the respective depositors; 

 In case of Fixed Deposits, it should be examined whether the Interest Rate in the accounting 
system are in accordance with the Interest Rate mentioned in the Fixed Deposit Receipt/ 
Certificate. 

 Interest on Savings Account should be checked on a test check basis in accordance with the rules 
framed by the bank in this behalf. 

 Interest on inter–branch balances has been provided at the rates prescribed by the head office. 
 Interest on overdue/ matured term deposits should be estimated and provided for. 

 

The auditor should ascertain whether there are any changes in interest rate on saving deposits and term 
deposits during the period. The auditor should obtain the interest rate card for various types of term 
deposits and analyses the interest cost for the period. The auditor should examine the completeness 
that there has been interest accrued on the entire borrowing portfolio by obtaining the detailed break 
up the money market borrowing portfolio and the interest accrued and the same should agree with the 
GL code wise break up. The auditor should re- compute the interest accrual on sample basis i.e., by 
referring to the parameters like frequency of payment of interest amount, rate of interest, period 
elapsed till the date of balance sheet, etc. from the term sheet, deal ticket, agreements, etc. 

 
QNO  
BA.19 

Security (Nature of Securities)                                                                                              New Course-- (M18E/N20R/M21M) 

 
Mr. A approaches a bank for financial assistance for his upcoming project. The Bank Branch Manager, after 
verifying the proposal, is agreeable to financing Mr. A, but asks for the security to be offered to the bank. 
Discuss the nature of securities required to be offered to the bank. 

Answer 
 
 

 Primary security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against 
which credit has been extended by the bank. This security is the principal security for an advance. 
Collateral security is an additional security. Security can be in s i.e. tangible or intangible asset, 
movable or immovable asset. 

 Examples of most common types of securities accepted by banks are the following. 
 Immovable Property (FA) 
 Stock Exchange Securities and Other Instruments (INV) 
 Gold Ornaments and Bullion (INV) 
 Life Insurance Policies (INV) 
 Goods/Stocks/Debtors /Trade Receivables (CA) 
 Plantations (For Agricultural Advances) (CA) 
 Personal Security of Guarantor (Notes) 
 Third Party Guarantees (Notes) 
 Banker’s General Lien (All) 

 
QNO. 
BA.19.50 

Security (Different forms of Security/Mode of 
creation of security) 

New Course-- (N20R) 

 Depending on the nature of the item concerned, creation of security may take the form of a mortgage, 
pledge, hypothecation, assignment, set-off or lien. Explain with specific reference to Audit of Banks. 

 Depending on the nature of the item concerned, creation of security may take the form of a mortgage, 
pledge, hypothecation, assignment, set-off or lien. 
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 Mortgage: Mortgage are of several kinds but the most important are the Registered Mortgage and 
the Equitable Mortgage. 

 Registered Mortgage can be affected by a registered instrument called the ‘Mortgage Deed’ 
signed by the mortgagor. It registers the property to the mortgagee as a security. 

 Equitable mortgage, on the other hand, is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other 
documents of title with intent to create security thereof. 

 Pledge: A pledge thus involves bailment or delivery of goods by the borrower to the lending bank 
with the intention of creating a charge thereon as security for the advance. The legal ownership of 
the goods remains with the pledger while the lending banker gets certain defined interests in the 
goods. The pledge of goods constitutes a specific (or fixed) charge. 

 Hypothecation: The hypothecation is the creation of an equitable charge (i.e., a charge created not 
by an express enactment but by equity and reason), which is created in favour of the lending bank 
by execution of hypothecation agreement in respect of the moveable securities belonging to the 
borrower. Neither ownership nor possession is transferred to the bank. However, the borrower 
holds the physical possession of the goods as an agent/trustee of the bank. The borrower periodically 
submits statements regarding quantity and value of hypothecated assets (stocks, debtors, etc.) to 
the lending banker on the basis of which the drawing power of the borrower is fixed. 

 Assignment: Assignment represents a transfer of an existing or future debt, right or property 
belonging to a person in favour of another person. Only actionable claims (i.e., claim to any debt 
other than a debt secured by a mortgage of immovable property or by hypothecation or pledge of 
moveable property) such as book debts and life insurance policies are accepted by banks as security 
by way of assignment. An assignment gives the assignee absolute right over the moneys/debts 
assigned to him. 

 Set-off:  Set-off is a statutory right of a creditor to adjust, wholly or partly, the debit balance in the 
debtor’s account against any credit balance lying in another account of the debtor. The right of set-
off enables a bank to combine two accounts (a deposit account and a loan account) of the same 
person provided both the accounts are in the same name and same right (i.e., the capacity of the 
account holder in both the accounts should be the same). For the purpose of set-off, all the branches 
of a bank are treated as one single entity. The right of set-off can be exercised in respect of time-
barred debts also. 

 Lien: Lien is creation of a legal charge with consent of the owner, which gives lender a legal right to 
seize and dispose / liquidate the asset under lien. 

 
QNO 
BA.20 

Audit of operating expenses New Course-- (S20M) 

 Explain the audit approach you would follow to check the Operating Expenses of a Bank. 

  Auditing the Operating Expenses of a Bank:- 
 

 Internal Controls: 
The auditor should study and evaluate the system of internal control relating to expenses, 
including authorization procedures in order to determine the nature, timing and extent of his 
other audit procedures. 
 

 Divergent Trends: 
The auditor should examine whether there are any divergent trends in respect of major items 
of expenses. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Substantive analytical Procedures: 
The auditor should perform substantive analytical procedures in respect of these expenses. eg. 
assess the reasonableness of expenses by working out their ratio to total operating expenses 
and comparing it with the corresponding figures for previous years. 
 

 Vouching & Verification: 
The auditor should also verify expenses with reference to supporting documents and check the 
calculations wherever required. 
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QNO 
BA.20.50 

Audit of Provisions & Contingency (Bank Audit) New Course-- (N20M/N20E) 

 

You are appointed as Statutory Auditor of DEF Bank Limited for the year 2019-20. As an Auditor how will 
you verify Provisions created by DEF Bank Limited? 

OR 
Your firm of Chartered Accountants has been appointed as auditor of a Nationalised bank. Explain how 
will you proceed to carry out audit of provisions and contingencies. 

  Answer 
 

For audit of Provisions, the auditor should ensure that the compliances for various regulatory requirements 
for provisioning as contained in the various circulars have been fulfilled. The auditor should obtain an 
understanding as to how the bank computes provision on standard assets and non-performing assets. It will 
primarily include checking the basis of classification of loans and receivables into standard, sub-standard, 
doubtful, loss and non-performing assets. The auditor may verify the loan classification on a sample basis. 
 
The auditor should obtain the detailed break up of standard loans, non-performing loans and agree the 
outstanding balances with the general ledger. The auditor should obtain the tax provision computation from 
the bank’s management and verify the nature of items debited and credited to profit and loss account to 
ascertain that the same are appropriately considered in the tax provision computation. The other provisions 
for expenses should be examined vis-à-vis the circumstances warranting the provisioning and the adequacy 
of the same by discussing and obtaining the explanations from the bank’s management. 

 
QNO 
BA.21 

Auditor's Report (Matters Required by Law)                                                         New Course-- (N18M) 

 
In the case of a nationalised bank, the auditor is required to make a report to the Central Government. The 
report of auditors of State Bank of India is also to be made to the Central Government and is almost identical 
to the auditor’s report in the case of a nationalised bank.  Explain what would the auditor state in his report. 

Answer 
 
 

 Matters prescribed by law  
Reporting of SBI / Nationalized Banks / Other Banking Companies is similar.  

 Whether or not the transactions of the company which have come to his notice have been 
within the powers of the company; (Cannot give loan on the basis of own shares) 

 Whether or not the returns received from the offices and branches of the bank have been 
found adequate for the purpose of his audit; 

 Whether, in his opinion, the balance sheet is a full and fair balance sheet containing all the 
necessary particulars and is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of the 
affairs of the bank. 

 Whether the profit and loss account show a true balance of profit or loss for the period 
covered by such account; and 

 Whether or not the information and explanations required by him have been found to be 
satisfactory; 

 any other matter which he considers should be brought to the notice of the shareholders of 
the company. 

 Author’s Note  
 For simplicity and remembrance we have combined all unique points 

 Transactions  Return from branches  B/S+P/L  All information &explanation  any 
other matter 
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QNO 
BA.23 

Fraud Reporting (Regulator) New Course-- (N18M) 

 

“If an accounting professional, whether in the course of internal or external audit or in the process of 
institutional audit finds anything susceptible to be fraud or fraudulent activity or act of excess power or 
smells any foul play in any transaction, he should refer the matter to the regulator. Any deliberate failure 
on the part of the auditor should render himself liable for action”. Analyse and explain the above RBI 
Circular regarding liability of accounting and auditing profession. 

Answer 
 
 

 Reporting to RBI - 
 Applicability 

The RBI issued a Circular relating to implementation of recommendations of Committee on 
Legal Aspects of Bank Frauds applicable to all scheduled commercial banks (excluding 
Regional Rural Banks). Regarding liability of accounting and auditing profession, the said 
circular provided as under: 
 

 Responsibility 
“If an accounting professional, whether in the course of internal or external audit or in the 
process of institutional audit finds anything susceptible to be fraud or fraudulent activity or 
act of excess power or smell any foul play in any transaction, he should refer the matter to 
the regulator. Any deliberate failure on the part of the auditor should render himself liable 
for action”. 
 

 As per the above requirement, the member shall be required to report the kind of matters 
stated in the circular to RBI. 

 

 Standards on Auditing 
Auditor should also consider the compliance with provisions of Standards on Auditing. 

 SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements”, explains 
that the duty of confidentiality is over-ridden by statute, law or by courts. 

 Whereas an auditor conducting an audit in accordance with SAs is responsible for obtaining 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error according to SA 240 

 

 Companies Act 
 Further, as per sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, if an auditor of a 

company, in the course of the performance of duties as auditor, has reason to believe that 
an offence of fraud involving such amount or amounts as may be prescribed, is being or has 
been committed in the company by its officers or employees, the auditor shall report the 
matter to the Central Government within such time and in such manner as may be 
prescribed. 

 

 It must be noted that auditor is not expected to consider each and every transaction but to 
evaluate the system as a whole. Therefore, if the auditor while performing normal duties 
comes across any instance, he/she should report the matter to the RBI in addition to 
Chairman/Managing Director/Chief Executive of the concerned bank.  

 
QNO 
BA.24 

Additional Reports apart from report on financial 
statements #Unique 

New Course-- (M21R) 

 Your firm of auditors, SRG & Co., has been appointed as Statutory Central Auditors of Reliable Bank. Explain 
the reporting requirements of the Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs) in addition to their main audit report. 

Answer Presently, the Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs) have to furnish the following reports in addition to 
their main audit report: 
(a) Report on adequacy and operating effectiveness of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting in 
case of banks which are registered as companies under the Companies Act in terms of Section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 which is normally to be given as an Annexure to the main audit report as 
per the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
ICAI. 
(b) Long Form Audit Report. (LFAR) 
(c) Report on compliance with SLR requirements. 
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(d) Report on whether the treasury operations of the bank have been conducted in accordance with 
the instructions issued by the RBI from time to time. 
(e) Report on whether the income recognition, asset classification and provisioning have been made 
as per the guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. 
(f) Report on whether any serious irregularity was noticed in the working of the bank which requires 
immediate attention. 
(g) Report on status of the compliance by the bank with regard to the implementation of 
recommendations of the Ghosh Committee relating to frauds and malpractices and of the 
recommendations of Jilani Committee on internal control and inspection/credit system. 
(h) Report on instances of adverse credit-deposit ratio in the rural areas. 

 
QNO 
BA.30 

Risk on Money Laundering #Unique New Course-- (N20E) 

 As an Auditor of XYZ Bank Limited, how would you assess the Risk of Fraud including Money Laundering in 
line with SA 240? 

Answer As an Auditor of XYZ Bank Limited, risk of fraud including money laundering would be assessed as 
explained hereunder which is in line with SA 240.  
 
As per SA 240 “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”, 
the auditor’s objective is to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial 
statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on those identified 
misstatements and to respond appropriately. The attitude of professional skepticism should be 
maintained by the auditor so as to recognise the possibility of misstatements due to fraud.  
 
The RBI has framed specific guidelines that deal with prevention of money laundering and “Know Your 
Customer (KYC)” norms. The RBI has from time to time issued guidelines (“Know Your Customer 
Guidelines – Anti Money Laundering Standards”), requiring banks to establish policies, procedures and 
controls to deter and to recognise and report money laundering activities. 

 

TRUE AND FALSE 
 

TNO-BA-T-1 

 The matters which the banks require their auditors to deal with in the long form audit report have   been 
specified by the Central Government. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The matters which the banks require their auditors to deal with in the long form audit report have been 
specified by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 
TNO-BA-T-2 

 An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of 
the sanctioned limit/drawing power. 

Answer 
 
 

Correct 
An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of 
the sanctioned limit/drawing power. 

 
TNO-BA-T-2.5 

 

An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of 
the sanctioned limit/drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating 
account is less than the sanctioned limit/drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 180 days 
as on the date of Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same 
period, these accounts should be treated as ‘out of order’. 

Answer Incorrect: 
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An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess 
of the sanctioned limit/drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating 
account is less than the sanctioned limit/drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 
days as on the date of Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the 
same period, these accounts should be treated as ‘out of order’ 

 
TNO-BA-T-3 

 Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid within 90 days of becoming 
due. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date fixed by the 
bank. 

 
TNO-BA-T-4 
 Banks recognize income on Non- Performing Assets on accrual basis. 
Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Income from non-performing assets (NPA) is not recognized on accrual basis due to its uncertainty but is 
booked as income only when it is actually received. 

 
TNO-BA-T-5 

 In the computerised environment, the auditor need not be familiar with latest applicable RBI guidelines 
that have bearing on the classify cation/ provisions and income recognition.        

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
In the Computerised environment, it is imperative that the auditor is familiar with, and is satisfied that, all the 
norms/parameters as per the latest applicable RBI guidelines are incorporated and built into the system that 
generates information/data having a bearing on the classification/ provisions and income recognition. 

 
TNO-BA-T-6 
 RBI has been entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the activities of commercial banks only. 
Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 

RBI has been entrusted with the responsibility of regulating the activities of commercial and other banks 

 
TNO-BA-T-7 

 Registered mortgage is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other documents of title with intent to 
create security thereof. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Equitable mortgage, on the other hand, is effected by a mere delivery of title deeds or other documents of 
title with intent to create security thereof 

 
TNO-BA-T-8 

 
The auditor can assume that the system generated information is correct and relied upon without evidence 
that demonstrates that the system driven information is based on validation of the required parameters 
for the time being in force and applicable 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
The auditor should not go by the assumption that the system generated information is correct and can be 
relied upon without evidence that demonstrates that the system driven information is based on validation of 
the required parameters for the time being in force and applicable. 
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TNO-BA-T-9 

 Collateral security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against which 
credit has been extended by the bank 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Primary security refers to the security offered by the borrower for bank finance or the one against which credit 
has been extended by the bank. This security is the principal security for an advance. 

  
TNO-BA-T-10 
 Auditor of a Nationalised bank is to be appointed at the annual general meeting of the shareholders. 
Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
Auditor of a nationalized bank is to be appointed by the bank concerned acting through its Boards of Directors 
and approval of the Reserve bank is required before the appointment is made. 

 
TNO-BA-T-11                                                                                                                                                                                 

 Classification as NPA should be based on the availability of security and asset classification would be facility 
wise and not borrower wise. 

Answer 
 
 

Incorrect 
All facilities granted to a borrower and investment made in securities issued by the borrower will have to be 
treated as NPA/NPI and not the investment/facility once any or a part of the facility/investment has become 
irregular. 
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QNO 
AOC.01 

Qualification of Auditor (Non-CA Appointed Tax Auditor)-   New Course-- (M18E) 

 

Mr. M, has served as an auditor in the Co-Operative Department of a Government, is appointed as a 
statutory auditor by a Co-Operative Society that has receipts over Rs 3 crores during the financial year. He 
is not a Chartered Accountant. Mr. D, Chartered Accountant is appointed to conduct tax audit of the society 
under section 44AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Comment. 

Answer 
 
 

 Provision:  
Qualifications and Appointment of Auditors – 
Apart from a chartered accountant within the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, 
some of the State Co-operative Acts have permitted  

 persons holding a government diploma in co-operative accounts or in cooperation and 
accountancy and  

 also a person who has served as an auditor in the cooperative department of a government 
to act as an auditor.  

 

An auditor of a co-operative society is appointed by the Registrar of Co-operative Societies and the 
auditor so appointed conducts the audit on behalf of the Registrar and submits his report to him as 
also to the society. 

 

 Applicability and Conclusion: 
 Thus, in view of above provisions, appointment of Mr. M as statutory auditor and Mr. D as tax auditor 
under Section 44 AB is in order. 

 

QNO 
AOC.05 

Sec-72 Qualification & Disqualification of 
Auditor(Multi-State Co-operative Society) -                                                                                          

New Course-- (N18M/N18E/M21M) 

 

Briefly explain the provisions for qualification and appointment of Auditors under the Multi-State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002. 

OR 
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 states that a person who is a Chartered Accountant within 
the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 can only be appointed as auditor of Multi-State co-
operative society. Explain stating also the persons who are not eligible for appointment as auditors of a 
Multi-State co-operative society. 

Answer 
 
 

 Qualification of Auditors –  
Section 72 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 states that a person who is a Chartered 
Accountant within the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 can only be appointed as 
auditor of multi-State co-operative society. 

 

 Disqualification 
However, the following persons are not eligible for appointment as auditors of a multi-State 
cooperative society- 

 A body corporate. 
 A person who is a member. 
 An officer or employee of the multi-State co-operative society.  
 A person who is in the employment, or an officer or employee of the Multistate co-operative 

society. 
 A person who is indebted to the Multi-State co-operative society or who has given any 

guarantee or provided any security in 

AUDIT OF DIFFERENT TYPES OF ENTITIES 
 

CHAPTER 
        13 
 

Part 1 – Audit of Co-operative Society 
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  connection with the indebtedness of any third person to the Multi-State co-operative 
society for an amount exceeding one thousand rupees. 

 

If an auditor becomes subject, after his appointment, to any, of the disqualifications specified above, 
he shall be deemed to have vacated his office as such. 

 

QNO 
AOC.07 

Powers and Duties of auditors-  New Course-- (M20R) 

 Explain the powers and duties of auditors under the Multi -State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002. 
Answer 
 

 

 Section 73 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 discusses the powers and 
duties of auditors.  

 Powers of the auditor  
According to this, every auditor of a Multi -State co-operative society shall have a right of 
access at all times to the books accounts and vouchers of the Multi-State co-operative society, 
whether kept at the head office of the Multi - State co-operative society or elsewhere, and shall 
be entitled to require from the officers or other employees of the Multi- State co-operative 
society such information and explanation as the auditor may think necessary for the 
performance of his duties as an auditor. 

 

 Duties of the auditor 
As per section 73(2), the auditor shall make following inquiries: 

 Whether loans and advances made by the Multi -State co-operative society on the 
basis of security have been properly secured and whether the terms on which they 
have been made are not prejudicial to the interests of the Multi -State co-operative 
society or its members, 

 Whether transactions of the Multi-State co-operative society which are represented 
merely by book entries are not prejudicial to the interests of the Multi-State co-
operative society, 

 Whether personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, and 
 Where it is Stated in the books and papers of the Multi-State co-operative society that 

any shares have been allotted for cash, whether cash has actually, been received in 
respect of such allotment, and if no cash has actually been so received, whether the 
position as stated in the account books and the balance sheet as correct regular and not 
misleading. 

 

QNO 
AOC.09 

Audit Report-  New Course-- (M20R) 

 

"As per Multi-state Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the auditor shall make a report to the members of the 
Multi-State co-operative society on the accounts examined by him and on every balance-sheet and profit 
and loss account and on every other document required to be part of or annexed to the balance-sheet or 
profit and loss account. Explain" 

Answer 
 

 

 

 As per sub-section (3) & (4) of section 73 of Multi- state Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the auditor 
shall make a report to the members of the Multi -State co-operative society on the accounts examined 
by him and on every balance-sheet and profit and loss account and on every other document required 
to be part of or annexed to the balance-sheet or profit and loss account, which are laid before the Multi 
-State cooperative society in general meeting during his tenure of office, and the report shall state 
whether, in his opinion and to the best of his information and according to the explanation given to him, 
the said account give the information required by this act in the manner so required, and give a true and 
fair view: 

 In the case of the balance-sheet, of the state of the Multi-State co-operative society’s affairs as 
at the end of its financial year; and 

 In the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit or loss for its financial year. The auditor’s 
report shall also state: 

 Whether he has obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of his 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of his audit. 

 Whether, in his opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Multi- State 
co-operative society so far as appears from his examination of these books and proper 
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returns adequate for the purpose of his audit have been received from branches or 
offices of the Multi -State co-operative society not visited by him. 

 Whether the report on the accounts of any branch office audited by a person other 
than the Multi-State co-operative society’s auditor has been forwarded to him and 
how he has dealt with the same in preparing the auditor’s report. 

 Whether the Multi-State co-operative society’s balance sheet and profit and loss 
account dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and 
return. 

 

 Where any of the matters referred to in sub-section (3) or (4) is answered in the negative or with 
a qualification, the auditor’s report shall state the reason for the answer. 

 

QNO 
AOC.10 

Special Features of Co-Operative Audit (Audit 
Classification & Draft Audit  Report) 

New Course-- (N20E) 

 

You are appointed as an auditor of co-operative society. State the special features of the co-operative audit 
to be borne in mind by the auditor, concerning.  
(1) Audit classification of society.  
(2) Discussion of draft audit report with the managing committee. 

Answer 
 

 

 Audit classification of society.  
After a judgement of an overall performance of the society, the auditor has to award a class to the 
society. This judgement is to be based on the criteria specified by the Registrar. It may be noted here 
that if the management of the society is not satisfied about the award of audit class, it can make an  
appeal to the Registrar, and the Registrar may direct to review the audit classification. The auditor 
should be very careful, while making a decision about the class of society. 
 

 Discussion of draft audit report with the managing committee. 
On conclusion of the audit, the auditor should ask the Secretary of the society to convene the managing 
committee meeting to discuss the audit draft report. The audit report should never be finalised without 
discussion with the managing committee. Minor irregularities may be got settled and rectified. Matters 
of policy should be discussed in detail. 

 

QNO 
AOC.11 

Co-operative Society- Special Audit - Section 77-  New Course-- (M19E/S20M) 

 
Central Govt. hold 55% of the paid-up share Capital in Kisan Credit Co-operative Society, which is incurring 
huge losses. Advise when the Central Government can direct Special Audit under Section 77 of the Multi State 
Co-operative Society Act. 

Answer 
 

 

 Shareholding required for order of special Audit: 
Central Government shall order for special audit only if that Government or the State Government either 
by itself or both hold fifty-one percent or more of the paid-up share capital in such Multi -State co-
operative society.  
 

 When order of special audit is given: 
Under section 77 of the Multi-State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, where the Central Government is of 
the opinion: 

 That the affairs of any Multi-State co-operative society are not being managed in accordance with 
self-help and mutual deed and co-operative principles or prudent commercial practices or with 
sound business principles; or 

 that any Multi-State co-operative society is being managed in a manner likely to cause serious 
injury or damage to the interests of the trade industry or business to which it pertains; or 

 that the financial position of any Multi-State co-operative society is such as to endanger its 
solvency. 
 

 Conclusion 
Thus, in the given case since Central Govt is holding 55% shares and financial position of Kisan Credit co- 
operative society is in danger, Central government can direct for special audit. 
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QNO 
GA.00 

Government Audit & its objectives #Unique Old Course-- (M21R) 
New Course—(S20M/M21R/M21E) 

 Define Government Audit & explain its objective’s 

  Government Audit is the objective, systematic, professional and independent examination of 
financial, administrative and other operations of a public entity ,made subsequently to their 
execution for the purpose of evaluating and verifying them, presenting a report containing 
explanatory comments on audit findings together with conclusions and recommendations for future 
action by the responsible officials and in the case of examination of financial statements, expressing 
the appropriate professional opinion regarding the fairness of the presentation. 

 OBJECTIVES:- 
 Accounting for Public Funds:- It serves as a mechanism or process for public accounting of 

government funds. 
 Appraisal of Govt. Policies: -It also provides public accounting of the operational, management, 

programme and policy aspects of public administration as well as accountability of the officials 
administering them. 

 Corrective Actions: - Audit observations based on factual data collection also serve to highlight 
the lapses of the lower hierarchy, thus helping supervisory level officers to take corrective 
measures. 

 Administrative Accountability:- The main objective of audit is a combination of ensuring 
accountability of administration to legislature and functioning as an aid to administration 

 
QNO 
GA.00.50 

Government audit is not investigative activity 
#Unique 

Old Course-- (M21R) 
New Course—(M21R) 

 Government audit is neither equipped nor intended to function as an investigating agency, to pursue every 
irregularity or misdemeanour to its logical end. Explain 

Answer Government audit is neither equipped nor intended to function as an investigating agency, to pursue 
every irregularity or misdemeanour to its logical end. The main objective of audit is a combination of 
ensuring accountability of administration to legislature and functioning as an aid to administration. In 
India, the function of Government Audit is discharged by the independent statutory authority of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General through the agency of the Indian Audit and Accounts Department. 
Audit is a necessary function to ensure accountability of the executive to Parliament, and within the 
executives of the spending agencies to the sanctioning or controlling authorities. The purpose or 
objectives of audit need to be tested at the touchstone of public accountability. The Comptroller and 
Auditor General (C&AG), in the discharge of his functions, watches that the various authorities act in 
regard to financial matters in accordance with the Constitution and the laws made by Parliament, and 
conform to the rules or orders made thereunder. 

 
QNO 
GA.01 

Duties of C&AG                                                                                                 Old Course-- (P16M/S17M/M17R/N17M/M18R/N19R) 
New Course—(S17M/M19R/N19R) 

 Explain in detail the duties of Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
Answer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 To compile and submit Accounts: 
 The C & AG shall compile the accounts relating to the annual receipts and disbursements of the 
Union / State / Union Territory. He shall submit those accounts to the President / Governor / 
Administrator. 
 

 To Audit and report:  
The C&AG shall audit and report on-  

 All expenditure from consolidated fund of India /state /union territory. 
 All transactions of the Union / State relating to Contingency Funds and Public Accounts;  
 All trading, manufacturing, Profit and Loss Accounts and Balance Sheets and other 

subsidiary accounts kept in any department of the Union / State. 

Part 2 – Government Audit 
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 To audit Receipts and Expenditure:  
The C&AG shall audit and report on all receipts and expenditure of anybody or authority, which has 
been substantially financed from the Consolidated Fund of India / State / Union Territory. 
Note; For this purpose, a body or authority shall be treated as substantially financed if the amount of 
grant or loan in a year is - (a) greater than Rs.25 Lakhs and (b) such amount is greater than 75% of 
the total expenditure of that body or authority. 
 

 To audit Grants or Loans:  
He shall audit specific purpose loan or grant given to anybody other than a foreign state or 
international organization, out of the consolidated fund of India /state /union territory. 
 

 To audit Receipts of Union or States:  
The C&AG shall audit all receipts payable into the Consolidated Fund of India / State / Union Territory. 
He shall satisfy himself that the rules and procedures are designed to secure an effective check on 
the assessment, collection and proper allocation of revenue and are being duly observed. 
 

 To audit Accounts of Stores and Stock:  
The C&AG shall have the authority to audit and report on the accounts of stores and stock kept in 
any office or department of the Union / State. 
 

 To audit accounts of Government Companies and Corporations: 
 C&AG shall exercise such powers and observe such duties as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, in relation to Government Companies and Corporations. 

 Author’s Note:                                                                                                                                      
The shortcut the duties of C&AG 
SAG2AR2 

 
QNO 
GA.03 

Responsibility of CAG to compile accounts Old Course-- (N20M) 
New Course—(N20M) 

 
The Comptroller and Auditor General shall be responsible for compiling the accounts of the Union and of 
each State from the initial and subsidiary accounts rendered to the audit and accounts offices under his 
control by treasuries, offices or departments responsible for the keeping of such account. Explain. 

  Compile and submit Accounts of Union and States - The Comptroller and Auditor General shall be 
responsible for compiling the accounts of the Union and of each State from the initial and subsidiary 
accounts rendered to the audit and accounts offices under his control by treasuries, offices or 
departments responsible for the keeping of such account. The Comptroller and Auditor General shall, 
from the accounts compiled by him or [by the Government or any other person responsible in that 
behalf] prepare in each accounts (including, in the case of accounts compiled by him, appropriation 
accounts) showing under the respective heads the annual receipts and disbursements for the 
purpose of the Union, of each State and of each Union Territory having a Legislative Assembly, and 
shall submit those accounts to the President or the Governor of a State or Administrator of the Union 
Territory having a Legislative Assembly, as the case may be, on or before such dates as he may, with 
the concurrence of the Government concerned, determine. 

 The C&AG Act of 1971 has provisions for relieving him of this responsibility to give information and 
render assistance to the Union and States: The Comptroller and Auditor General shall, in so far as 
the accounts, for the compilation or keeping of which he is responsible, enable him so to do, give to 
the Union Government, to the State Government or to the Governments of Union Territories having 
Legislative Assemblies, as the case may be, such information as they may, from time to time, require 
and render such assistance in the preparation of the annual financial statements as they may 
reasonably ask for. 
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QNO 
GA.05 

Audit of 
Expenditure-All 

Old Course--
(P16M/M16R/N16M/M17M/M17R/M18R/N18M/M19E/N19R/N19E/M20R/M21M) 

New Course—(N19R/M21M) 

 

An audit of Expenditure is one of the major components of Government Audit. In the context of 
‘Governmen1Mt Expenditure Audit’, write in brief, what do you understand by: 
(i) Audit against Rules and Orders 
(ii) Audit of Sanctions 
(iii) Audit against Provision of Funds 
(iv) Propriety Audit 
(v) Performance Audit. 

OR 
Audit of government expenditure is one of the major components of government audit conducted by the 
office of C&AG. The basic standards set for audit of expenditure are to ensure that there is provision of funds 
authorised by competent authority fixing the limits within which expenditure can be incurred. Explain those 
standards. 

OR 
The audit of Government expenditure is one of the major components of Government audit. Briefly explain 
the basic standards set in relation to audit of Government expenditure. 

Answer 
 
 

 Audit of Government Expenditure  
It is one of the major components of government audit conducted by the office of C&AG. The basic 
standards set for audit of expenditure are to ensure that there is provision of funds authorized by 
competent authority fixing the limits within which expenditure can be incurred. Briefly, these 
standards are explained below: 

 
 Audit against Rules & Orders:  

The auditor has to see that the expenditure incurred conforms to the relevant provisions of 
the statutory enactment and is in accordance with the financial rules and regulations framed 
by the competent authority. 
 

 Audit of Sanctions:  
The auditor has to ensure that each item of expenditure is covered by a sanction, either 
general or special, accorded by the competent authority, authorizing such expenditure. 
 

 Audit against Provision of Funds: Audit against provision of funds is aimed at ascertaining 
whether the monies shown in the accounts as having been disbursed, were legally available 
for and applicable to the service or purpose to which they have been applied or charged. 
 

 Propriety Audit:  
It is required to be seen that the expenditure is incurred with due regard to broad and general 
principles of financial propriety. The auditor aims to bring out cases of improper, avoidable, 
or in fructuous expenditure even though the expenditure has been incurred in conformity with 
the existing rules and regulations. Audit aims to secure a reasonably high standard of public 
financial morality by looking into the wisdom, faithfulness and economy of transactions. 

 

 Performance Audit:  
This involves that the various programmes, schemes and projects where large financial 
expenditure has been incurred are being run economically and are yielding results expected 
of them. Efficiency-cum performance audit, wherever used, is an objective examination of the 
financial and operational performance of an organization, programme, authority or function 
and is oriented towards identifying opportunities for greater economy, and effectiveness. 
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